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AMERICAN ARBITRATION ASSOCIATION

PIOTR NOWAK,

Ciaunant/()cunterciazm Respondent @

v8.
' Case No.
FENNSYLVANIA PROFESSlONAL : 14 166 01589 12
SOCCER LLC and KEYSTONE SPORTS

Respéndenj/{lamxtercimm
Claimant

V8

PINO. SPORTS LLC,
-Counteiclaing ’i{espondeni

POST-HEARING BRIEF OF PIOTR NOWAK AND PINO SPORTS LLC

Piotr Nowak (“Glaimant” oi“Mz. Nowak”) and Pino Sports LLC, by.and through theix

" undersighed counsel, submit this post-hearing brief in support of their claims and in responseto

the counterclaims asserted by Respondents; Pennsylvania Professional Soccer LG and
Keystone Sportsand Enteftainment LLC (“Respondents™ ot the “Teani” or the “Club” ot the

“Phiiladelphiia Uriion”).
1L  INTRODUCTION

Claimant’s prineipal position in this matier is that Respondents acted in bad faith contraty

* to the terms of their employment agreement with M. Nowak by tetminating him and alleging.

that his conduct was 50 ogregious that it was incapable of being remediated. The claims in whole

and inpart were mere prefext to avoid honoring the terms of Mr. Nowak’s contract.

In 2009, Claimant Plotr Nowak, a world-renowned professional soecer player and coach,

~lefthisjob as head coach of the U23/U.S, Men’s Olympic Team with U.S. Soccer and moved his

H
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family from Florida to Peniisylvania for the promise of long-term job seourity asthe head coach
and mianager of the Philadelphia Union. Despite the execution of an employment .agreerﬁ,e;it that
secured f{h@;éampcnsation associated with this position through December-of 2015; on June 13,
5012, the Philadelphia Union terminated Mr. Nowak and refused to make the remaining
paymiéiits —in excess of §1.4 miillion - due to Mr, Nowak underthe agreenent. The: Team
terminated V. Nowak for “cause™ ina fundamentally unfair mannes; {1) without first
&iscmssmgmtb him the allegations against'?him;-. (2) without first providing him with 4 copy of
fehg;:_}s/{_ajgrﬁgague Soccer Report that served as the basis for Mr. Nowak's iexmmauan, (3) ‘
without notice; (4) without any prior written discipline; and (5} Wiﬂiﬁuz;:mvi&igg Mr, Nowak
the qubm%;ity o cure any {ssues the Team had with him as was required by the contract.

Accorditig to:the MLS Report and the initial notice to Mr. Nowak, the alleged bases for the

fermination voncerned a trainingrun on May 31, 2012; alleged mis-tiéatingnit of concussion

issues; alleged hizing activities; and alleged intérfererice by Mr. Novak with the MLS Playets.
Union. After the actual “firing” Mr, Nowak received a termination letter adding amumber of
other bases for termination about which Mr. Nowalk had no notice at all and that were-of litfle

consequence to the Team,

~ Me. Nowak does not dispute the Team’s tight to terminate him, but he.does dispute-the
Team’s right to terminate him for “cause” and deprive him of the livelihood for which he had
contracted. The evidence presented af the he&r'il;g Sixggéstcé a numbey of reasons for the
termination of Mr. Nowak, It remaifas unclear what the real reason(s) for M, Now:ak’s.

termination were, but if is clear that Respondents d%(f riot act with the requisite good faith in the

. execution of their responsibilities under the contract. More specifically, Respondents-acted in

bad faith by: (1) failing to confront Mr, Nowak with their concerns or inquire of Mr. Nowak his-

2.
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version of the events that the Team maintains were the basisfor his termination; (2) by failing to.
provide him with an opportunity to cufe any-alleged defects; (3) by refusing to ever identify his
acousers (with one exception); and (4) by ultiately 8&6idiigg hils termination would be for

“cause” wheh there was n6 good faith support fot such an-assertion.

A hearing was held before Axbitrator Margaret R. Brogan on May 28-30, 2014 éind
oontin:ue‘cii on August 19-20, 2014. ‘Both parties presented testimonial and documentary
evide;;ce, Respondenits Exhibits 1 through ?{3*3&(1@&3»&@{8‘2}"{11%’1{8» 1 through 16 were
admitted into-evidence. The .Fhil‘a&éif{;hia Union presented the live testimony of Dave,
Debusschere, Executive Vica.?tesid;ﬁ% and CHOof Reystone Sports & Entertainment and its
subsidiaries; Todd Durbin, Bxecutive Vfié.e.‘?ie{si&én{tc}f'(i{)ﬁt%p@iiiﬁéﬁ;, Player and £’ﬁ5§r'.¥{é35€ions
e y m Phifladelphia Union player (D
Y ¢)|-c: {or the Philadelphia Union; Nick.
Sakiewicz, CEO, o;la‘!erati;nga partaer and co-founderof the Philadelphia Union; NSNS 2
current playet for ’ﬁae,"Pﬁi;ldéiphia- Union (R
e e
ORI, - ov:: for the Philadslphia Union; SNNENMSENSESNNEY - player for the

Philadelphia Uniony Paul Rushing, the Philadelphia Union’s Head Athletic Trainer; and Steve

for Major League Socoer;

Hudyma, the assistant Athletic Trainet for the Philadelphia Union, The Philadelphia Union also
presented video testimony of Shep Messing, former professional soccer player, former sports

agent and current sports cominentator; Mike Morris, a European sports agent; and Robert “Bob”

~ Foose, Executive Director of the:Major Leagne Soccer Players Union,
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M, Nowak presented his own live testimony as well as the conference call testinony of

Diego Guitiérrez, a former professional soecer player for 13 years, the former head of seoufinig

and player development for the Philadelphia Unioti and later the Sporting Director fot the
Philadelphia Union.
Mr. Nowak tespectfully requests the Arbitrator sustain his breach of contract claim and

award appropriate damages, including attomeys’ fees and costs, pursyant to the-employivent

agreement,
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II.  STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES
The Parties agreed that thie issuc should be stated as follows:

Whether any-claim or counterclaim should be sustained; and if sustdingd; the damages Wﬂl bé
sibject to.proof. (May 28,2014 Tr. at p. 4. Acc@rdmgiy, the sub-issues ‘are ag follow:

1, Clais: Whether the Team brcached Mr, Nowak’s: Empioymen’c Coiitfet when they
terminated him on June 13,2012,
Suggested Answer: Yes.

2. Counterclaim 1: W}xether Respondeits are-entitled to reeover loan proceeds, interest;
attemey s foes and cost of collection pursuant to-Section X X1 of the Empioymeﬁt
Apreerent,

Suggested Answer! Respondents:ate entitied o recover only theremaining.
“halanice due to-them on the Loan.

3. Courterclaim 2: Whether the prevaﬂmg party‘;her iy ermﬂe(i to tecover. attornieys’ foes
and cost incurred in this matter and/or the matter saptiotied Pistr Nowak v. Pennsylvanta
Professional Soccer; LLC, No. 2:12-cv=04165 in the Unitted States District Court-for the
Eastern District of Pennsylvania. '

‘Buggested Answer: The parties will address this issue i thejirfee petition;

4. Counterclaim 3: Whether Respondents are-entitled to recoveramounts aévazmd priorto.
termination underthe Pino Agreement with interest,

Suggested Answer: Respondents-are-entitled to.recover only the-temaining,
balance diie oh the Advance.
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0. STATEMENT OF FACTS
" A. Background of Claimant Piotr Nowak

age-of 15, ultiniately playing fot the Polish National Team. (May 28,2014 Tr. at p. 133-34). In
December of 1997 —the early days-of MajotLeague Soceerin the United States - Mr. Nowak

signed a contract with the Chicago Firg as its firstinternational signing-and began playing for

¢

2014 Tr. 4t p. 134); Afier comipletirig his fifth'year with the Chicago Fire, Mr. Nowak was
traded to the New Ergland Revolutionbut opted to etire as a playerand move to Florida with
his wife and daughiter.. (Id.). Mr, Nowslthen served as the ambassador for the Chicago Fire in

2003 and was the first membér.of the Ring of Fite, (May 28,2014 Tr. at p. 135).

Sortly thereafior, M, Nowik was hired-ag the head coach of anothier MLS team, D.C.

- made it to the playoffsunder ‘i\zﬁ{fﬁﬁewaiifssiea‘dezﬁhip but lost i the coriference, final. Tn 2006,
D.C. United won the Suppf?ﬁiéz’Sﬁ%&id'ﬁi;@’avafdéd to the best tearh in régular season) and also
advanced to the Edstern Corfetense Fiuals, again whilé Piotr Nowak was at the helm. (Id. at pp.
136-37). After leaving D.C. United, 'I\'fir.fNovi(akﬁbeeame the interim assistant coach of ‘;hé U.s.
Men’s National Team. (Id: p. 138). He later became the head cogeﬁqf the U;S-. U23/0lympic
Team. (Id. at p. 139). Most recently, Mr. Nowak served as the head coach/manager of the
Pi?ﬁadeiphia. Union from June 2009 until his termination on Jungé 13, 2013, '(éec Respondents”™
Exs. 1 and 36). Mr. Nowak, has neverd"ane anything professionally other than coach or play

soceer. (May 28, 2014 Tr. at pp. 139-40).

Pino Sports LLC is an entity that owns aid controls the marketing rights of Mr. Nowak.

6
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‘B, History:of Major League Soccer and Creation of the Philadelphia Union

Ater the conclysion of the World Cup in 1994,.2 small group of people banded together:
in Lo Angéles fo créate Major League Soccer (‘MLS” or the “League”). (May 29, 2014 Tr. at
p.’504). ‘Nick Sakiewics, the-cuttent CEO of the Philadelphia Union was part of that group.
Aﬁeriwoyeaxs of getting vrganized, Major League Soccer was launched in 1996: (May 28,
2014 T, at p, 134; May 29,2014 Tr. at p. 504). Mr. Sakiewicz served as the League’s first vice -
president of sponsor sales. 'He later became the President of the League-operated Tampa Bay
franchise witil 1999 whinhe accéptéd 4 position as the President of the New York/New Jersey

" Metro State. (May 29, 2014.Tr. atpp. 504-05).

* Thereafter, Mr, :.Séiciewicz;:.'fomgéi,i.{g?yst_ona;s;aorts-, and along with Jay Sugatman,
deeided to form awxpaﬁsmteam Afier doing some market research; they decided on-
Philadelphia. (May 29,2014 Tr, ai~;pp,_se’§;,{)é);_ Mr, Sakiewieez and Mr. Sugarman closed on
tﬁér?hiié‘delpiﬁa Unioh fratichise in February of 2008 with the plan to have a team teady to play-

in 2010, (May 29,2014 Tr. at p. 507).

According fo Mr, Sakiewicz, Mr. Nowak was immediately on the short list of candidates
aggressive and fiety coach was well koown, In-fact, Mr. Messing described lim as*“in the best
sense is a driven, killer, maniacal player and he was that way as a manager.” (May 30,2014 Tr,
at p. 678). Mr, Sakiewicz and Mr. Nowak spoke a number of times be_twefeﬁ November 2008
and March of 2009, (May 29, 2014 Tr. at p. 508). Mr. Nowak made very clear that he wanted a

Jong-teim contract of 5 o6 years and that he wanted autonomy over the team. (May 28, 2014

-
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Tr. at pp. 146-47), Mr. Sakiewicz ackiowledged that “coaches with Piotr's background and-
Piott’s profilenieed long-term commitments.”™ (May 29,2014 Tr, atp. 511). Because.contracts

ofthis Jength were “unprecedented” in MLS, it the words 6f Mr. Sakiewicz; they ran into “some
; id 4 : ?

chalfenges” but in the end, the Philadelphia Union committed to Mr. Nowak At}ifm;'gh the end-of
2015, (Sce Respondents’ Bx. 3 and 5). Accoiding to M. S:akiewii:zz, “we-ended up shaking
’lxaﬁdsan“za-égal that made everybody happy at Major, League Soceer, made other owners in the
'liﬁa;'gil&h‘a}gpy; and I think gave Piotr the squbrt“matihe would be with us for a long time.”

{May'29,2014 Tr. atp. 512),

€, Mr, Nowak’s Time with the Philadelphia Union
In June of 2009, Mr, Nowak and the Philadelphia Union signed the Employment

Ajreenienit hifch contracted Mx. Nowak as the Manager of the Philadelphia Uhion-for the

petiod from June 1, 2009 to December 31, 2012, (May 29, 2014 Tr. at p-$11; Respondents” Ex,

1 hereinafter the “Employment Agreement™). Other than ohanges i the term:of the Employment

_Agreement, M. Nowak’s title and compensation, and the addition of a Loan {discussed below),
theterms of the Bmployment Agreement substantially remained i place until Mr, Nowak’s:

tefmination in Jime of 2012.

On or about June 1, 2009, the Club also 6:1(&31::;—6 ﬁﬁe an agreement with Pino Sports LLC,
a Florida limited liability company that exliiijsivelyowned the marketing rights or Mr, Nowak,
{Respondents™ Bx. 2; hereinafier, the “Pino Agreement”}. Pursiant to the Pino Agreament, the
Ci‘u& was to-pay Pino Sports LLC $85,000 per year for Mr. Nowak’s marketing rights.

{(Respondents’ Ex. 2).




Case 2:12-cv-04165-MAK Document 45-5 Filed 01/05/16 Page 13 of 67 -

After the 2010 season, Mr, Nowak and thie Team entered info a new _ag;egmc;ﬁtj dated
December20, 2010 which named My, Nowak the Executive Vice President of Soccer Operations-
' and extended s contract thirough Deceinber 31, 2015 bistdid niot changs his bas;e&:;‘fsmgensétim;r

during the term. (Respondents’ Bx.3).

In reliance on the expectation that he-would be in the Philadelphia area, at least through
" the end of 2015, Mr. Ncwak.fl?ggat;ﬂ;e;,procég,s_?f{f;fijﬁndhig;a suitable home in the area. In ’
contiection with "thaf-‘pu'rchasé. of that héme?; Mr: ‘Nowak needetd ad&iﬁﬂnai cash af '6108i1‘1§"§’52§ﬁ6h—
was provided to-him through o Loan‘and Advatice, the details. of which-are disoussed below:

{May 29,2014 Tr. at-pp. 882-88).

O or-about December 20, 2011, the patties.voided the Décember 20, 2010 agreement.
and éntered info a new agreerment w}ﬁéﬁsiﬁc@zp?;faies the Bmployirient Agreemet, réaffirns the
extension of the texm of M. ﬁﬁwak%vsmpiggmeﬁ.ﬁ'ﬁéeaxﬁbef.3 1, 2015, and provides for
“Amended Employment Agteement”). The Employment Agreement and December 20, 2011
Ammendéd Employment Agreement combined provide Mr. Néwak_f with a total B‘aée&Sﬁlaxy forthe -
period from January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2015 in excess of $1.5 million. *

(Respondents’ Ex. 5).

Pursuant to the Amended Employment Agreement, the Club also provided Mr. Nowak
with a $60,000 loan which was-to be paid back throiigh payroll deductions during the ~i~erpain&e£
of the term of the Emp};)yment Agreenient (Hegeinaﬁer, the “Loan™). {See Responderits’ Ex. 5,
YXXI). The Loan req;:lired that upon Mr. Nowak’s termination from the Club, the balance of the

foan became immediately due and payable and that any delay in re-payment under those:
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eiroumstances would result in intetest aceruing at a sef rate, (SeaRespondents’ Ex. 5). The
pattiés stipulated that no payments 'v;ie,rfe miade after Mr, Nowak’s tetntination. (See:Exhibit 70).
Reéspondents have filed a couriterclim in connection with the outstanding balance, and interest
due on'the Loan, ds well as.a claim fo:—étfcmays’ fees agsociated with atterapting to colleot these.

afnounts.

On ot-aliout Mareh 15,2011, the Club and Mr. Nowak separately oxecuted an Advance
and Pledge Consent:(the ‘-‘»;Advance’-f):tktoﬁgh which fie Club advariced to Pine Sports the:
"remaiﬁdei*- of the 2011 Pee and the entire 2012 Fee dﬁel!ndcfﬁxe Pino Agreement.
(Respondents’ Bx.4). Porsuantto the Advance, the payments were due within 30 daysof Mr. -
Nowak's termination, and the parties have stipulated that no such payments were ade:
(Respondents” Ex. 70). Respondents iia‘vezﬁieda'c@x;té:iélziiM"ih-ﬁé?&iééﬁép.?ﬁfhﬁﬂi&

outstaiiding balarics; and interest due on the' Advance.

D. Mr. Nowalds Terminaion
 Thereds no dispute that Mt. Nowak was terminated on June 13, 2012, (Respondents’ Bx.
36), There is no dispute that the Club hag refused to pay Mr, Nowak the remainder of the
compensation due N_InNowak under the Employment Agreement and Amended Employment
Agrsementk Rather; the Club has téken the position that they need fiot pay Mr, Nowak: because
‘he;_ was terminated for “cause.” (Respondents’ Bx, 36). -As a result of having not been paid the

remainder of his coptract, Mr. Nowak has ot repaid the Loan or the Advance.

Mr, Nowak deés— not dispute that the Philadelphia Union had the right to' términate Him. -

However, Mr, Nowak maintains that his termination did not satisfy the Bmployment

10
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Agreenent’s definition of “cause;” that Respondents acted in'bad faith, and that Respondent

breached the contract and the obligation to pay him. in accordance with the'contraot terms.

“While the testimony presented at héa’a‘fi_n;g;'inéiica@?.%merdispﬁteas-?fésts@ {he core issue.

hete isa Jégal one.

Atithe heart of the basts for Mr. Newak’s fermination for “cause” are'the confents of'a
putative:MLS Tnvestigation Report dated Jubie 12, 2012 (Re_s;j,oxiéézit:slﬁx;ﬁig); Vet no-oné
“provided Mr. Nowak with a copy of the MLS Report prior to his terminafionsmeeting, during his

termination meeting or over-the course-of the 10-month period fullowing his termination. It-was

notuntil April 22, 2013, that counsel for Respondents provided the M L8 Repoit to M, Nowak
Tor thefitst time through current eoﬁrisel;fozfﬁié‘:ﬁhﬁgiieigﬁiaﬂniénﬁz "Fhie Repiott identifies

" orily one interviewee by tiame, Paul Rughing; the Phﬁadelpiua Union' Head Athletic Tisiner, The
‘Report mentions that “various Philadelphia Union players® were interviewed, but they were;

never identified by name.” (Respondents Ex. 27)

! Because the MLS Investigation Report was olearly central to Mr, Nowak’s termination,
Mz, Nowik and his éounsel repeatedly tequested a copy of the Report. At the time, Respondents
were represented by counsel (not Mr. Colling and Mr, Andrisano) who refused to provide the
report, vet made representations to fhe undersigned counsel that Mr, Nowak had engaged in.
“criminal and fraudulent” conduct. (Respondents Bx. 72, Document 9, Plaintiff?s Memorandum
of Law in Opposition to Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss and'to Compel Arbitration at Exhibit A).
Despite this fact, brief settlerent discussions took place but when it becams clear that no
resolution could be made; Mr. Nowak filed 4 breach of contract suit in the United States District
Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania. (Respondents® Ex. 72).

2 Throughout the hearing, Mr, Nowalk requested that the individuals interviewed by MLS
be identified so that Mr, Nowak could cross examine these individuals. Respondents objected to

providing this information, asserting that it was goaﬁdential information and protected speech
under the NLRA. Not only was Mi. Nowak denied the ability to-cross examine those who

11
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The MLS investigation that led fo the Report, was conducted by. Todd Durbin and Brett

Lashbrook, counsel to MLS. (May 30,2014 T¢. atp. 718). Astoundingly, neither of theny saw it

tiecessaty, approptiate ot fair to itterview Me. Nowal about the:allegations contained in the
Repoit. (May 30,2012 Tr. atp. 827). TheReport addresses several topies which will be |
addressed in detail below: (1) the events surrounding the training run on May 31, 2012; (2) the
alleged mis-reatment.of concuission Jssues, (3) thi alleged hazing activities; and (4) the alleged

interference with the MLS Players'Utilon, (Respondents’ Ex. 27),

2. ThePhiladelphia Union’s “Investipation”

M. Saldewioz testiffed that he received a call from MLS ori May 24, 2012 regarding the
alleged interference by Mr. Nowalk betwesh the playérs atid the Players Union but he did not
bepin an investigation; (May 30,2014 Tt. atipp. 887-88). Then on May 31, 2014, M. Rushing-

contacted him sfter-a training ron that had oconrred eatlier that-day. (August 19, 2014 Tr. at p.

* 1091). Mr. Rushing explained to M. Sakiewicz his version of what happened on the run. (Id:)

Earlicr that day, Mr: Rushing hatl written 2 memo 10 the Team’s dottor; D, Hummer
stmmarizing his perception of thess ¢vents-as well.. fRespondéﬁts"Eﬁ; 13). Mr. Sakiewioz did
not order any kind of investigation,

Then, on June 6, 2014, Todd Durbin of MLS called Mr. Sakiewicz and advised him theto

were “substantial concerns about a training incident.” (May 30, 2014 Tr. t pp. 888-89), At this

point, Mr. Sakiewicz decided to conduict his own “investigation.” (May 30, 2012, Tr. at p: §90).

accused him, but Respondents also refused to even identify the number of players who were
interviewed. Mr, Nowak was prejudiced by this conduct an adverse inference should be drawn
against the Respondents.

12
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On that same day; M,'Z%meih.sent-an Sakiewicz an e-mail informing him that MLS was

conducting an investigation into Mr, Nowak’s conduct, (Resporidents® Bx, 142t PPS0001.136),

The:following day; Jane 7; 2012, M. Sakiewicz forwarded this communication to Jay

Sugazmanwﬁlanstesaymg&mt “Todd will talk to Peter today.” (Id, at P.P"SO‘()'OjI.iB'S)ﬁ;j‘ Also

on June 7, 2012, a week after having received a letter from Mr. Rushing, Dr. Hurhmer and D,

‘MeGlynm forwdrded Mr. Rushing’s menio to Dr. Hummer on to Mr. Sakiewicz, along with their

ovin cominents. (Respondents”Ex. 13 at PPS0001375).

‘Mt Sakiewioz’s version of an “Investigation” that would Jead to termination is shameful.
ﬁ’e;spﬁkg' to Dr. Himmer:who wasnot present at the training and had no first-hand .ig;’ewiedg@ of -~
the alleged eveints: ﬁ@‘ﬁﬁﬁeﬁ@ﬁf%iQY"ié&m__‘inﬁurY or 9?1'}‘-%%1‘3111?3%-ﬂﬁthé'-ﬁfaiﬁing’.i%&ﬁdéﬁ
‘iﬁjﬁ#@;;{;;ﬁz{z;ﬁhﬁ@ (May 30; 2012 Tr. gét_p,. 892). Mr. Sakiewicz 'gpok'ef'to,,i)amﬁ)ﬁbﬁ&SGii@f&
Who aiﬁe_ma&-r}ﬁt préserit at the run and hadrio-first-hand knowledge of the events.that.

transpired. (1d.) There was o festimony that Mr, Sakiewioz spoke direotly to.any of the

-g}aygxé; {See Id. at pp. 892-96). M Sakiewicz did not speakto M, Nowik: bec‘;aufse-hé‘tha& :

-¢oncluded that ihﬁ-t&ﬁ%&fas"‘p&ﬁiéhméat” by M. Nowak. (Id, at p. 893). 'The,'ﬁniy‘pezm@n.}wfiﬁ L

whira M. Sakiewioz sgoke that had first-hand knowledge of the May 31, 2012 training was Mr.

Rushing, (Id. at pp. 890-91).7

'3 Mr, Durbin, however, never spoke with Mr. Nowalk or even attempted to speak with
him between May 31, 2012 and his termination on June 13, 2012. (May 30, 2012 Tr.at p. 827).

* In an effort to present himself as a protector of the players, Mr. Bakiewiecz further
asserted that he ditected Paul Rushing to begin repott to, rather than o Mr. Nowak. (Id. atp.
892). This was a clear overstatement of his conduct as illustrated by the faet that Mr. Rushing
testified only that Mr, Sakiewicz “told me that I needed to just do my job and if there was any
problems that ocour the. following day of any other day that were similar to the problems we had
on the 31% that T was t6 16t him know.” (August 19, 2014 Tr. at p. 1092).
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’Mn Sakiewlcz adinitted that prior to-his meeting with Mz, Nowak onJune 13, 2012, he
had already decided to terminate him. (Id. atp.911). He dogumented as mueh _iinl his e~mail
with Todd Durbin stating that he would fire Mr. Nowak after he speaks w;th him: (Respondents’
| Exhibit 26 4t PPS0001124). He also adinitted his uneasonable position that he-did not ever:

consider a suspension pending investigation. (May 3.0,‘2014 Tr. 4t pp..910-1 1)

3. The Termination Meeting

On Wednesday, June 13, 2012 at 7:31 a.m., Mr. Sai;(iegripz-e:»;;;ailéd'm; Nowak a8

follows and-demanded a 9:00 a.nm. taeeting on that day:

Jeiy and I received phone ealls and a follow up meimo from thie
league concerning a sumumary of an inyéstigation the leaguehds:
been conducting, "This is very serious and includes:

1) Youjeopardizing the health and safety: of the plyers by restmctmg
access fo water during u'almng

2.) You geopardazmg the health and saféty of injured pi&}fers by
requiring them to patticipate in taining sotivities. againstthe
:advice of the team medioal staff,

3;) Youjeopardizing the health and safety of the players by creating
an atmosphere where concussion symptoms should be kept from
the medical staff and nof treated.

4, ) You engaging in mappropnate physical contact with rookie players
as part of an annual “hazing”

5.) You interfering with the players rights to contact the MLSPU with
CONCLINS.

6,) You creafing an overall “culture of fear” where our players do not
believe they have the ability to raise and address concerns
regarding their work enviroriment without retribution from you.

(Respondent’s Ex. 34).
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On June 13, 2012, Mr. Nowak received thie abave-referenced e-mail and teceived a'call.
that he rieeded to g6 to the office for ameeting. (May 28,20 14 Ti.atp. 151). At tio time prior
to receiving this e-fnail had Mr. Nowak been;naﬁfiad;%hat’anyonﬁ had complained to MLS about

his conduct and/or that MLS was conduetingan investigation into his conduet.

Mr. Nowak was sleeping at the:time ﬁﬁ&-aﬁt_ﬁa_ﬁ. was-gent but arrived for the reeting betweett 9: 10
and 9:15. (May 28, 2014 Tr, at p. 151). He eriteted a toom with Mr, Debusschere.and Mr.
Saldewio who immediately presenited M. Nowal withan unsigned fermination letter anda
general release. (Id.) ‘M. Debusschere asked him for the keys to his office and thekeysto his
car. (Id. at p. 152). Mr. Nowak festified — andﬂoonedmputesthts fact - that he wds. not
preserited with the MLS ii;yezsft%gaﬁdﬁ;x%poﬁfdi;riixgstﬁis ineeting. (Id, at p. 237). While M.
Saklewicz testified that he viould tiave “sat with Piotsfor 24 hours iF he wanted to disouss the
memo,” (May 30, 2014 Tr. at:p. 910); this was-a pure-contradiction to the faot that Mr. Sakiewicz.
admitied that he had already made the decision to tcfm'fiiﬁaté Mt, Nowak before the meeting and
that M. Sugatrhan had been part of that deeision. (,I{i.;at 911; Claimaint’s Ex. ‘12;.‘Sﬁg§fma’ﬁrfe§:
-atpp. 93-94). I »ad&iﬁon,_‘as:-descﬁbéd'morefiﬂly below, Mr, Nowak was ;Tiot pmvids& with an
opportanity to:res;pon'd to.the alieéaﬁieﬁs-‘set‘fmih in the e-mail calling him to the termination
m-e_eting-or the termination letter presented to him at the meeting which reiterated f}gese points
and piled on several other unfounded reasons for his termination for “éausc,” (May 28,2014 Tr.

at pp. 240-41, 247-49).

According to M. Sakiewiecz, the meeting Jasted only 25-30 minutes (May 30, 2014 Tr.
atp. 913) Aa’nd‘ was over before 9:56 a.m. (See Respondent’s Ex 35, showing 10:56 e-rnail from
Mr. S:ai;i.ewicrz to Mr. Sugarman advising Mr, Sugarman the méeting was over). At 12:46 p.ny,,
Mr. Debusschere e-mailed Mr. Nowak and his counsel at the time, William Daluga, and a%tachéd
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‘an unsignied termination letier'dated Junie 13, 2012-and o Separation and Gerteral Release

agreement, (Respondent’s Bx. 63), Mr. Nowak was presented with thie ultimaturn to either

exeocute the Separation and General Reledse Agreement which paid hirm only through Decermber
31,2012, orhe would be deemed to be terminated for “cause™ and reqeive an gxecuted version of

the termination letter-and ne compensation,
4. The Termination Letter

The proposed termination lefter presented to M. Nowak. diting this tueeting states that
M. Nowak was terminated “for-cause pursuant to paragraph II(AY” bt doesnot specify which.
of the 8 subparagiaphs. of Paragraph IT{(A) on which the Team relied.. (Respondents’ Bx.36).

The termitiation lettér also enumitates six (6) bases for Mr, Nowak’s tefmination as follows:

1. various:material breaches of League Rules (including the League’s’
Collective Bargaining Agreement), tncliding physical ceﬁfrentatmns
th]a players and officials during a Team gametesulting ina fine:and:
wulti-game suspcnsmn, interfering with the rights of Team players to.
-contact the player” wnion with concerns, subgeatmg Tearn players to
inappropriate-hazing activities and engaging in behavior that put the
‘healthuarid safety of Teéam players at risk.

* 2. material breaches of the Employment Agreement, including-engagingiin.
diseussions ragardmg and otherwise actively seeking, emnployinent by
other professxona! soccet tearns in Burope and makitig disparaging
remarks 1o third parties regarding Club, its mansgement and its
ownership,

3. demonstrating gross negligence meluchng putting the health and safety
of Team players at risk by requiring inured players to participate in
strenttouis training activities, not allowing players to have water during
such activities despite temperatures in excess of 80 degrees, ignoring the
advice of the head athletic tralning regarding which p’layers are healthy
enough to play in games and participate in the training sessions and
oreating an atmosphere where medical issues should. be hid from
medical staff and not treated.
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4. commiitting actions that ‘have reflectedina materially adverse manner
on the integrity; reputation and goodwill of Club and the Tean (in the
gyes “the League, US: Soccer, current and potential Team playets,

?wponsers aad:féns} dncluding the unusually harsh treatrent of piayers

-above, actions during Team games that have resulted in fines

-:ané s:zspensmn, the multiple breaches of League Rules and a discussion

{by you-and youragent on your behalf) with the head of U.S. Soccer.

‘thiat was in very poor-taste- and left a very bad impression with U.S,

Soceer..

5. nultiple incidents of insubordination with respect to the Club’s Chief
‘Bxecutive Officer; including elaiming at one point (in direct
‘conitadiction to the teting of the Bmploymient Agreement) that he does
not report fo the Club’s Chief BExecutive Officer.

§. wvarious miaterial breaches of Tearn Rules, including creating a hostile
'- rvironirient i culturg of féar Yor Team players.and other front
yy orally berating and physically intimidating fellow

office employees:
emp{oyegs

(Respondents’ Bx., 36): The létter also asserts that the “Club has detersinied that the above-
;i_n&gﬁ;ﬁéﬁs{ar{%-ini:)t-’-’e:agaélg-o‘fiﬁ‘éiﬁgﬁ;&i;fe&.ﬂaﬁci: belisves your continued employment by Club:
swould contine to eause material harmto Club,” (Id. at p. 2); The letter concludes by

demanding payment of the Loanwand the Advance. (Id.).
IV. ARGUMENT

The ?ﬁﬁédei’phia" Union breached its contract with Mr. Nowak by wrongly asserting that
he was terminated for “canse™ and thus, depriving him of his rights under the Employment
Agreement, Withrespect 16 the counterclaims asserted by Respondents regarding the Loan and
the Advance, given that Respondents acted in bad faith in breaching the Employment
-Agreement, thug depriving M. Nowak of the ability to pay the outstanding principal on. the Loan.
and Advance, the Arbitrator should :‘mt charge Mr. Nowak with the interest due on the Loan

and/or Advarnce.
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A, The Philadelphia Unio Breached Its Contraet With M. Nowak
. Atthe heart of this case is whether Mr. Nowak was properly tetminated for-“cause” under
the Biployment Agreeient or whether the claims of “cadse” weremerely pretextual, Mr..
Nowale subinits that he was not terminated :fofr “cause” and thus, is entitled to the unpaid portion
of the Base Salary Amount from June 13,2014 through Decernber 31, 5015 and all bonuses that
" he’hall eamed. The evidence at hearing does not support a finding of ternsination for Scause;™
but rathet shiows that Respondent materially breached the contract. This:was. essentially an
ififerHial management dispute which overlaid the instability-of a new entétptise. Bvenif the
Adbiteator does find that the “cause” standerd could be rét, the Teatn haterfally breached the

first by féﬁiﬁgﬁ’t@:prmiéeﬁiﬂ Nowak.with three contractual prerequisites torhis lawful

‘térfaihation for cause: (1) reasonable details regarding the reason for'his texmination; {2) a.

atingful oppottunity to respond to the accysations; and (3) an opportunity to/cure any defeots

ithis performative: Respondénts’ insistence that the conceits th_‘ﬁ}y“r_{aiséé Wwete not cutable s ot

made in-good faith.

Respondents’ assertion that Mr. Nowak was propexly terminated for “cange? is-without
mefit. Patagraph Il of the Employmient Agreement governs termination and provideés as.

follows:

- {A) This Agreement, and Manager’s employment hereunder, will be.
deemed {6 be terminated prior to the expiration of the Term upon the death
of Manager, Inaddition, Club may terminate this Agreement, and ‘
Manager’s employment Hereunder, upon written totice by Clubi to Manager
in the event of the occurrence of any of the following:

(2 Manager’s willful failure, neglect or refusal to render services
hereunder, or any material breach of this Agreement or the Pino Agreement
(as defined below) by Manager
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(3) Managers gross negligetics or willfil misconduct inperforming
duties hereunder

(5) Manager™s comnission of & any action or involvement i many
oceurrence that , . . reflectsin a materiglly adverse thanner-on: the integrity,
reputation or goa_dwxli of Club orthe Team;

R

(7) Manager’s failure to comply inall matedal respeets with Team
Rules (consistently applied to'the eoaching st aff of the ’I‘eam) or- League
Rules;

or

: (B) Club may also terminaté this Agreem
Manager for any reason other than asset forthi
for noreason. . . . .

tipon wWrtten: tofice to.
aragraph T(A) above or

(C) Upon termingtion of this Agree
or (B) above, all of the rights and-obl
shall forever cease; including, withior at mghts and abiigatwas .
of the parties under Paragraphs IV {Cempensatxo n]and V' [Additiofial
Beneﬁts} except that (?.} Club shai' ‘rem Al -ebizgated to pay Manager any

rent Pl xsuaat to Paragmph THA)

appiwable, below but have not yot bee pazd asofthe éate of temtmaﬁon
and (2) in the event of Managet’s ta:mmaiwn by Club pursuant fo
Patagraph [[I(B) above . . ., Club shall remain o‘bhgateé to pay Manger, in
accordance with the payment schedule set forth in Paragraph IV(B) below
and subject to the terms of Paragraph 1U(D) below, the applicable Base.
‘Salary Amount provide for in Patagfaph IV(A) below through December
31, 2012 (the “Severance Payments”). Whether Chib has ferminated this-
Agreement pursuant to Paragraph I(A) or (B) shall be determined in:good
Juith by Club at its reasonable disoretion; p}'ovided hat (i) prior to
terminating Manager pursuant to Paragrapk IA), Club shall spécify-in
reasonable detuil the reason Manager-is being so terminated and give
Manager an opporiunity to respind therefo, (if) Such determination shall be
subject to Paragraph XIII [Governing Law, Arbjtration and Aftorneys’
Fees] and (iil) prior to terminating Manager pursuant to clguse (2), (3), or
(7} of Paragraph HT{4), Club shall allow Manager fificen (15) days to cure
the occurrence, except that Club shall have no obligation o provide
Manoger such opportunily lo cure:if Club determines, in its good faith
Judgment, that the cccurrence is of & natyre that is not.curable or-that
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Manager’s conitinued employment during o cure period cold be {5i¢)
reasonably: be-expected to vesult in mipierial harf to Club..

{Respondent’s Exhibit 1, § 11 (A) (emphasis added).?

Mz, Nowal was not properly terminated :fisr»eénse,-pursz_zanm paragraph II{A) of the
employment agreemert. -Respgndémszﬁeitﬁe::;s.rex;i:ée,dfm.n Nowak with reasonable details asto:
the reasons for his termination, nor did they provide him a meaningful opporturiity to respond,
nor did they provide him with an Opiporiunity to. éi%xe}}ﬁs conduct as reqitired by the Bmployment
Agréetnent: fEiiﬁSé':inﬁferiéi 'breacﬁés,,Qiéhgﬁyiﬁz;thef?&’aﬂfme to provide: Mr. Nowak with-a copy
of the MLS Report ~ai1_dtféiﬂi§r‘6:§ﬁ@rovidej Mr. Nowak.with an opportunity to confront his

accusers:resounds in fundamentally unfaimess.

With Reasonabls Detall As To The.

ertunity To Respond

Provide Mr
mination Qry

The Bifiplogrisit Agreement requires that “prior to terminating Manager pursuant to

Paragraph THI(A); Club shall specify in reasonable:detail the reason Manager is .iiéizfge-;jsias ?

 Paragraph HI(AY(1) is inapplicable becduse it relates to termination dueto disability..
Paragraph TI(A)(4) is inapplicable because it felates to commission of a felony ot misdemiennor
involyitig a crime of nioral turpifude; neither of which are alleged here. Paragraph HI(AY®) s,
inapplicablé because it-cross reférénces with Paragtaph I(C). Paragraphs HCY(D-(iv) relate to
fixing or throwing games, bribery, and/or use of alcohol or drugs in a manner that interferes with:
perfofiance, none of which are alleged hexe. Paragraph I(C)(v) relates to conduct that is

“piaterially préfudicial to the intetest'of the League or the Team ot materially detrimental to-the

public image and/or reputation of the league, the Club and/or the game of soccer.” (emphasis -
added). Nowhere in the termination letter or elsewhere did Respondents assert such material
prejudice or matefial detriment. Even so, Responderit has not shown material prejudiee, which
requires proof that the party was unable to exercise rights that it otherwise would be ableto
exercise but-for the prejudicial sction orevent, First Commonwealth Bank v. Heller, 8363 A.24
1153 (Pa. Super, 2004Y; Vanderhoffv. Harleysville Insurance Compuany, 78 A.3d 1060 (Pa.
2013). Lastly, Paragraph TI{A)(8) regarding direction by the Commissioner of the League to
terminate the Agreement is inapplicable because the Team accepted full responsibility for the
decision to terminate Mr. Nowak. (May 30, 2014 Tr. at p. 911; Claimant’s Ex. 12, Sugarman
Dep. at pp. 93-94),
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terminated, [and] give Manager an opportunity to respond.” (Respondénts’ Ex. 1 at I (€)).
While the Termination Letter asserts 6 iﬁfo’aﬁiy‘WOrécé'{;iaimg,jt'};gwis mspecxﬁoﬁywzth

respeet to which allegations relate to which termination elause fin the contract.

Eﬁiiﬁ'li_y-~as~imp:eréa§t,’ Mz, Nowak wasnot provided with . meaningful opportunity to
respond to the allegations prior to the deeision io:icl:#iijﬂ%tﬁ him. “The téstimony wasclear that,
ME. Nowslk s ot even fiade aware.of tho MLS:investigation ito-his conduct il thie:
investigation was referenced in an e-mail fo litn less than two-houry prior to his termination:
The fﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁm@;}y* also was:clear that Mr. Nowak was never interviewed by anyone at MLS in

001!1360&011 with the allegations set forth in the MLS Repert.. (May 30,2012 Tr. atp. 827). Tn

| additich, Me. Sakiewicz testified that e conducted his own investipation. (Id. at p. 890).. Y&k,

‘everthiewas forced toadmit that e did not interview or otherwise.iquite with Mr. Nowak

‘regarding the allegations contained in-the MLS Report. (Id. at p. 893),

© Mr. Sakiewicz attempted to take the position that My Nowak 1;1;1:&;%1@;&2;&0@1&3&0

testxﬁetci that he did ot recall Mr. Nowak’s specific words but stated fha%;Mr; Nowak denied:and
deflected. (May 28, 2014 Ti. at pp. 114-18). Mr. Nowak’s testimony, however, was both cleat.

and-credible:

Q: Okay. Now in the letier that was dated Juse 13"‘ 2012, Twant you to
Iook at paragraph 1 and the first portion of that where it says here’s why
you're being fired: “various material breaches vf League Rules (inoluding
the League's Collective Bargaining Agreement), including physical
confrontations with players and officials during a Team gameresulting in a
fine and multi-pame suspension . . .” 'L-et me just stop there,

Was that ever discussed with you ont the 13™ as a reason you were.
bemg terminated?.
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-A, No, Thsie was eniy the: folder, this folders: (sac) Theré was the two
papers. They were ‘both handed:to me. There was: not discussed any of
‘these points..

Q. Okay Now, It says' “miaterial broachies of the Employmeént Agreement,
including engaging in disoussionsregarding; and. therw;se actively
‘seekitig; efniployrent by other professional soecer teams in Europe and
rhaking disparagiiig remarks to third’ paﬁ:es régarding Club, its management
and its ownership.” #

Q. Was that discussed with yoi a3 a reason you wepe beliig terminated?
A. No.
(May 28, 2014 Tt. af-pp. 241-41),

Q. Allxight, T-want tostake you down to 4, whete it'fefers to™. . multiple
breaches of League Rules and diseussion (by y’ou ory ‘.-.:agent on your
behalf) with the Head of UiS: Socget thatwas in verypoor tastsand left &
very- bad impression with US. Soceer™

Hold on a second. Was that issue raised with your whet Joruwers:
terminated? .

A, No,

Q: Okay. “multiple inicidents of itisabordination: with réspest to the Club’s
Chief Executive Officer, mciuﬁmg claiming at one-point .., that he does not
report fo the Chibs Chief Executive Officer

Any discussion with you about this insubordination with respect to the
Club’s Chief Executive Officer?

A, No.
(May 28,2014 Tr, at p, 247).
Q: Look at Paragraph 6.

. “various material breaches of Team Rules, including creating a hostile
Work environment and culture of fear for Team, players and other front
office employees by orally berating and physically intimidating fellow
employees.” .
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Okay. Was thiat s“;‘i@ﬁaﬁf iarcagﬁt up-whetr you were terminated?
A Ne;

Q. There's arstaternent here; “Club has determined that the dbove
infractions’are not capable of being cuted and believes your continued
emp[oymcnt by Club: Wouid continue to cause matemai harm to Club.” Do
yowsee that?

A, Yﬁﬁzr:

0. Oiay. *g;‘;;ag.~'the:§i§b§¢"'ﬁgffgarﬁaisgé xi?ith_;ymu#

A. No.

Q:~when you met on thigimoining of your termination?

&, No.

atp.24849),
Me S"‘k""’*’""‘z"”m“mfaﬁastosnggestthanfm Novak had said the “right things"

'chang.ed Hismind-and would not have terminated Mr. Nowak. (Mayss; -12?0-‘1 47Tt, at pp. :92’%.-1’52‘});

-But in'the end, Mz, Sakiewioz aduitted that the degision o ferniinate M, Nowak had been made

a'dayortwo edtlier, (May 30; 2014 Tr. 2t p: 911).

Perhaps froma technival $taridpoint, M. Nowak could be said to hdve had ati opporfunity
to respond to the allegations sét forth i the e-rr{ai;i, but he certainly did not have any opportunity -
to tespond to the additional issues raised inhis termination later. Moreover, given ;oziiy two
houes of notice of the tefmination mesting, any opportunity torespond was certainly nota
raeaningful one (Ii.ice being given a chance to absotb the charges and develop cogent résponises 16
the allegations made against hini), as any reasonable person would expect. Therefore, the Club.
failed to satisfy any ofthe cczrlt,ract"s prerequisites o termination under Pa:agtaph’lﬁ_{A), thus

failing to act in good faith and materially breaching the Employment Agreement.
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Paragraph ITI(C) also requires that the Club dct in “good faith” ‘when determining:

Whethet Mr, Nowak.is being terminated for “cavse” under Paragraph ITI(A) or not for cause
utides Paragraph I1(B), the latter of which entitles him to continued Base Salary and eamed:

‘Botns; More Sﬁepiﬁﬁa}iy,j ‘the Employment Agreement provides:

Whetlier Club has terminated this Agreement pursuant to. Pamgrap}i ZII{A}
of (B} shall be determined in good’ faith by Chib-at its reasonable
discretiony provided that (i) priorto terminating Manager. pursaant to-
Paragra;aﬁ TII(A), Club shall specify in reasonable detail the réason Mandger
ig being so. terminated and give Manager an oppottunity to respomi‘i:i ereto;.
(i ‘uch détermination $hall be subject to ?aragraph XIIL[Governing Law;
Arbilration and Attorneys’ Fees):and (iif) prior fo teymingting Manager
puistafit to clavse (2), (3), or (7)-of Paragraph TH(A), Club shall dlovw
Manager fifieen (15} days to-cure the decurrence, axcept that Cld :
ebhgatxo;x to provide Manager such-oppertunity fo cure if Club

Haw
de o8, in its good faith judgmént, that the occutrence is of anatire that:

le.or that Manager's conitinued ef A;::Ieymﬁnt durinig: period.
could s {sic) reasonably be expected to result in material harmeto Clhab,

(Respondents” Ex. T4 TH(C)) (emphasis added).

“Good faitl is defined as “artotal absence of any inferition to'Seck an urifair advantage or

o defidiud another party; an honest and sincere intention fo fulfifl on;e"’s.iolf)}{gatioﬁsﬁ"

BARR@N’S LAW DICTIONARY 208 (?rd ed, 1991). “Good faith . . encompasses, driiong.
other things, an honest belief, the absence of malice and the absence of design to defraud orto
seek an unconscionable advantage.” BLACK’S LAW DICTIONARY 623 (5™ ed, 1979). Good
faith may also be defined as: “[a] state of mind consisting in (1) honesty in belief or purpese, (2)
faithfulness to mi&s duty or obligation, (3) observance of reasonable commiercial standards of
fair &e‘a“%in‘g in a given trade or business, or (4) absence of intent to defraud or fo seek |
unconscionable advantage.” Hartman v. Baker, 766 A2d 347,355 n.3 (‘P,a", Super, Ct. 2000).

The duty of “good faith” has been defined further as “[hJonesty in fact in‘the conduct ot
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transaction coricerned.” Jd. (citing 13 Pa. C.8: § 1201); Creeger Brick.& Building Supply Inc. .
Mid-State Bank & Trusf Ce., 385 Pa. Super. 30, 560 A.2d 151, _1_"532;'(19‘89);

Examples of bad faith-conduct include “evasion of the spirlt of the bavgain, lack of"
d‘iligeﬁce_-and slacking off, willful ‘renéefing of imgerfect.perfommme,f abuse of a power to
‘specify terms, and interference with or failure to cooperate in theother party’s
petformance.” Kaplan v. Cablevision of Pa, Jne., 448 Pa. Super, 306, 318, 671 A.2d 71,722
;1.9'96).

Tn addition to the express “good faifh” fequitement in Mr: Nowalk’s Employtent
Agréement, Pennsylvania law also imposesinev efy contract “a duty of good faith and fair
deatling in its performance aind its enforcement ‘Somers v, Somrers, 613 A2d:1211, 1213 (Pa.
‘Supet. Ct. 1992) (clting Restatement (Second).of ﬁbﬁﬁé@iﬁ §205) The implied duty of good
faith-and fair desling *ceriainly requesi)othpaﬁ;es ‘t'i_%?a_&}i:f‘(iﬁgiéﬁéténtfv&"ﬂiithéé,j;}stiﬁéé
expeciations of the:othet party.” Herzogv: Herzog, 8 8’?A2d3} 3, 317 (Pa. Super. Ct. 2005).

Moréover, in making its-good féit%{-ﬁéter;zﬁn_aéign, the Employment Agteement required.
the Club to exercise “reasonable 'd;i:_screztiair;?? f{;liespéadénis’ Ex. 1 II(C)); See USX, Corp, v,
Prime Leasing, 988 F.2d 433, 438:(3d Cir.1993) (Duty of good faith implies a “duty to biing:
‘about a condition or to exerclse diseretion ii: a redsonable. wa{:fji’?).

The evidenos presented during the hearing shows that Respondents conduct was
inconsistent with the reasonable expéctations of any employee accused o;? wrongdoirig and it
evaded the spirit of the bargain. The testimony from both parties was that Mr. Nowak warnted a
long-term contract. The terms of the vontract futther-establishied very limited circumstances in
which M. Nowak would not receive the full economic value of his employment-contract. The

contract went so far as to provide that in nearly all termination circumstances, Mr. Nowak would
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first be notified of any jssues with his conduct-and thentwqx_iié.be _;zmyidcd with an.oppoitunity:
to cure, The Club’s failure to even advise Mr. Nowak that allegations had bee‘afma;deﬁ;fagéi‘"ﬁét
himté MLS is evidence of the Team’s interference with Mr Nowal’§atternpt :te,zper;féﬁn his- )
obligations ander the contract: Moreover, the Club’s failure to either .insfist.tﬁgt: MLS interview

Mr. Nowak:fot his perspective on the allegations:or to interview him themselves s illustrative of

" the Team’s intention to seek unifaix advantage over Mr. Nowak. Lastly, the Club’s failure to |

. provide Mr: Nowak with-opportunity to cure easily curable issues which wete in'évery cdse;-

single incidents which did notyepeat themselves;: fp“rc{)'vésitfie’ Team aoted inconsistently with Mr.

Nowak’s justified expectatiotis: aﬁzifbrieaelié& fhezczm'tracthy failing to act in good faith. Thisis

) partieuiarlyzﬁ*uegiw*éﬁiﬁe:-gﬁ@‘, course of dea}fing‘ (See discussion infra regarding

insubordination-at:section IV(A)I)(@)(ii).

3. Respondents Did Not Provide M. Nowak With An Oppottutity To Cute
Clonduet That Was Easily Curable And Not Reasonably Likely To Cause
Material Hariri- To The Club

Termination pusuant to THAY2); T(A)(3), or TH(A)(T) requires that prior to

. termination winder fiese provisions, the Club must “allow Manager fifteon (15) days to cure the:

OCCULTENce, exceptiﬁat Club shall have no obligation to provide Manage such-opportunity-to

cure if Club determines, irvits good faith judgment, that the occtirence is of a nature that is not

curable or that Manager’s continued smployment during a. anreﬁeriéd could be feasonably be

{sic) expected to result in maferia{hfarm.fo Club.” (Respondents’ Bx. 1 §II(C) (emphasis

added). Respondents failed entirely to provide My, Nowak with an opportunity to cure any of the.
coneems fai-s,ed dt the time of firing or thereafler. Moreover, the circumstances Wﬁfe:‘_ not such
that continued employment could reasonably be.expected to result in “material harm™ to the Club

(however that is defined).
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‘W have already discussed the evidence of Respondents lack of good faith, lreaddition,

‘Respondents cannot show that the circumstances were:suchthat continued employment conld

reasonably be expested toresull in “material hatm.” Forhiarin to b “iaterisl,” it st be
quantifiable and congtete. Humberisonet us y. Alyight, 40 Pa, D.&C. 456,458 (Pa. Com. Pl

1940)(material hariii must be eapable of being teasured); Agriss v Roodway: Express, Ine. 483

 A2d456 (Pa. Super, Ct. 1984)(using the terms “material harm” and “special harm”

interchangeably and:defining special harm as being “harm of 2 material and‘gesierally peowriiary

natute”or that chused “concrete economic loss:computable in doliais”). Respondents subritted

- fio-éviderice of pecuniary harm,

Moreover, Respondents presented no evidence to suggest that even if we accepted that

alleged conduet ag true, that the-condyct could not'be cuted and/or that som¢ Measurable’ aidior
. eeonohiic harmi would hiave befallen the Team M. Nowak Was fiot texininated. Iié;ﬁfé‘c't%,_féveﬁ

M. Sakiewicz acknowledged that with ofie exception (thie alleged hazing - the facts about which

theréis soime dispute), Mr. Nowak always corrected any troublesome behavior:
Q. Allright. And the lnvestigative report focused on the e¥ents of the 31%
isthatright? '
A. And the interference issue, which was prior to that.

Q. And am I correct that subsequent to that putative interference issue you
have no evidence that Piotr ever did that again; right?

A. No. Tdon't hiave any évidence that he did that again,

Q. And after this single running event of the 31% you have fio evidence that
Piotr never did anything during training that was inappropriate or improper;
correct?

A. Correct.

Q. So to the best you can tell me, every time Piotr did something that you
found wrong or offensive and he was told about it, he stopped doing it.
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A, Withvonie exception, which was the hazing issues.
(May 30, 2014 Tr. at p. 203-04).

The Team had a variety oftobvious-and-reasonable options at their fingertips so to suggest

that it exercised good faith judgment in cofoluding no-cure vids possible is ridiculous, The Team

conld have simply directed Mr, Nowak 16t fo tefuse o Tiriiit water again or he would be

termingted. The Téam piovided no such admonition verbally or inwriting, The Team could

have directed M. Nowak not to-use the trafl at YSC again, but they did not. The Team could

‘have sat down with My, Nowak:and discussed who'had authoiity over the health and well-being
of the:players, m a similar manner in Which theyhadaddregseﬁ apteviousissue reparding who

had what authiority, B_’uiiﬁiemwas o stch convérsation: The Tean conld have sat Mr. Rushing

-anid Mr. Nowak in 4 room and had fem work out their differences. Giventhat the Team claims.

it had already told Mr. Nowak to cease the:allegedly inappropridte-aspects:of hazing —notice

which Mr. Nowak vehemiently: denies —{he Teat 66uld liave directed Mr. Nowal in writing to

ceasé the agtivity, The Tearn Zould have sispetided M. Nowak periding a thotough

investigation. The Team could have terminated Me. Nowak and paid out thereraainder of his
contract. Nonetheless, despite all .ﬁfgesé :rﬁas;onablfé, options, the Team topk the mest Draconian

approach available o them, which Sﬁggests-aeomplgie-'a lack of ‘good faith.

Having diseussed the ways in which Respondent materially breashed the contract by
failing to act in in good faith, failing to provide M. Nowakthh the-opportunity fo respond to
the allegations against him, and failing to provide Mr. Nowak with ’t_hé oppotfunity fo cure any
defects, all of which were tequired by ‘tha.,gmpleymeﬁt-Agreemeﬁf, we now turn to the more
specific allegations set forth in Mr. Nowak’s termination letter and their applicability to specific

provisions of the Employment Agreement,
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a. ‘Termination Pursuant to TII(A)(2)

Paragraph TI(A)(2) of thie Emiployment Agreement permits termination fég “Manager’s
willful failure, tieglect of fefuisal to fénder services hereunder, or any material breach of this
Agiéément- Qii:’;ﬁ’e‘i Pifio Agresment {as defined below) by Manager.” (Requnciants’“ Ex. 19
IEI(A)(?.)} “There ate no allegations.of willful failure, neglect or refusal fo render services. Thus,

bredch™ of this Employient - Agreeiment:. In order for a breach to be material, it-must be

ithportant 0f necéssity 45 related to:4 given maiter. BARRON'S LAW DICTIONARY. (3d-ed.

i~§9§?~?)f-atj§3ﬁfﬁi%§ ‘Bven assuming:as true the allegations surrounding Mr. Nowak allegedly
seeking Oﬁi‘iét’@m?i.()}’mf@ﬁ;; allsgedly making disparaging remarks-and allegedly engaging

‘insubordination; this conduct does not constitute a material breach,

Patagraph 2 6f the Tertnination Letter alleges the following reasons for termindtion:

S pennsylvania courfshave adopted the Restatement (Second) of Contracts 1o determine.
“ateriality” for purposes of breachinga contract. Thus, the following factors-are considered:

4) ‘the extent to which the injured paity will be deprived of the benefit
_ which he reasorably expected;
by theextent to which the inj ured party can be adequately compensated
 for that part-of the benefit of which he will be deprived;
¢y the extent o which the party failing to perform or to offer to perform.
will suifer forféiture;
d) the likelihood that the party failing lo perform or offer to perform will
* ¢ure his failure; taking dceount of all the ciroumstances including any -
~ reasonable assurances; A
€) the extent to which the behavior of the party failing to perform or offer
‘to perform comports with standards of good faith and foir dealing.

Widmer Eng'g, Inc. v. Dufilla, 837 A.2d 459, 467 (Pa. Super. 2003). (citing Restatement
{Second) of Conitracts § 241.(1981)) (emphasis added). As discussed throughout, Respondents
Have shown.no evidence that these issues could not have been cured and in failing to provide Mr.

‘Nowak with opportunity to-do so, Respondents acted in bad faith to the extreme detriment of Mr.

Nowak.
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siiaterial breaches of the Employment Agresment, including engaging in
discussions regarding and otherwise actively seeking; employment by other
proféssional soccer teams in Europe and making disparaging remarks to -
third parties regarding Club, its managewient and its-ownership.

(Respondents’ Bx. 36 12).

‘W tiote fitst that this ai_iega'tionfifs a riere ““pile on™ insofar as it was included in.the
tefmination letter, but niot in the notice to M. Nowak regarding what became his-termination
meeﬁngansﬂne 13,:2012. Thus, to begin, Respondents breached Paragraphy II(C) of the
Emg}oytment Agreement by failing to provide ﬂoﬁcc io Mx Nowak-of thesé ~;§aﬂi‘<&1flét;:failégg&
offenses;pifor o his termination, as was réquired, -Moreoyer,subistezﬁtiveiy%~evan*ass§miﬁg th:
factd- a8 presented: by Réspen&ents ‘were true here, Mr. Nowak couﬁﬁ& not be cm&siéiéreé to have.

engagedmmatmaibreaches of the Employment Agreement.
i, -Secking Other Employment

‘M. Nowak did tiot breach-any material tertivof the Bimployment Agreement by speaking
with Messts. Messing arid/or Monis. The Bmployment Agreorent provides that “during the
Term, Manager shall not (1) engage in discussions wiihmmy other proféssional soecer team
regarding employment by suck te_am"’; {(Respondents” Bx. 1 § VID. Respondénts offered the

testimony of Shep Messing and Mike Morris, neither of which were compelling on this issue,

By way of background, Mr. Messing testified by videoconference that he'hiad played a -
role in: M. Nowak coming to play 31 the. ﬁ;& and further asserted that he has been in “constant
contact” with Mr. Nowak during his time as a player, managei-of D.C. Unijaaci, and then as an
as.siste;ﬁt with the U.S, Natiogal Team. (May 30,2014 Tr. at p. 661). While Mx Messing did not

represent Mr, Nowak when he was with D.C. United, he said he was considered by himself and
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Mr, Nowak to be M. Nowak's “advisor” (Id. at p. 662). Mr. Messing then claimed that he

recommended Mr. Nowak to M, Sakiewicz for the job with the Philadelphia Union. ‘(Id. at p.
663). Mr. Messing later described lﬁnxssif?as ‘"‘oo.jﬁt_inirihg’to be [Mr. Nowak’s]
agent/representative/advisor” yet he was ‘uhaﬁie' to prodiice any contract with Mr. N"o wak and
acknowledged that he had never been paid by M. Nowak. (Id..at 679). Mr. Messing also

testified that he is not “registered with the League agan dgent.” (Id. at 684):

M. Messing went on to testify that Mr. Nowilk had ¢ontagted him in the April/May time-

frame.of 2010 before the World Cup and had advised him that {Fthe-1.8. did not do well, he

would be mtcrested in takmg overasthe U.S, National Team head coach, Mr. Messing. testsﬁeé

that this “bothered me & httic bit* and he founé it “pretty disturbing.” (Id.4t.664). He said that

M, Nowak contacted him after the I_I,S, _‘§§}S§, 16 South Aﬁzeaand,asked him 16 .;&;pea;k to-Sunil

[Gulati], the hiead of U5 Soccer as well; but thetewas:not téstimony that either Mr. Messing, or |

‘anyone else arranged sucha conversation: (Td. %1&{{3‘..555{.‘);

- M Messing also »tesﬁﬁeéi-abo‘a.téan alleged :cqﬁversaﬁbti e had with Mr. Nowak after the
1.8. Open Cup game at Red Bull Ar@na;i_ﬁ 2011, during which the “gist™ of the conversation,
according to Mr. Messing was that Piotr told him “T have to get the hell out of Philadelphia. *
These giys are stupid. They don’t know what they're doing and they’re broke. They have 1o
money.” (Id at p. 666). Mr. Messing later testified that he was “disgusted” that Mr. Nowak was
seeking Mr. Bradley’s job, given that Mr. Bradley had been part of bringing Mr. Nowak to the
U.8. (Id. at 667). He also testified that in 2012, he failed to retuirn  number of Mr. Nowak’s

calls and ultimately referred him to Mike Mortis, a European agent, (Id. at 667-68).
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‘Bveit assuming all of thiswas triie, this wasnota breach atall —let alone a.material
breach « of ‘tfhe‘Emﬁiqmeﬁtugg’réﬁmem, Thdﬁh;giegment Agreement only-prohibits Mr.
Nowalk from actually “engaging indiscussions?” with other professional socter teams. M.

Nowak had no discussions himself, not did be:diréet any authorized. répresefitative have suck a

~ discussion witli-ariothier pfofessionial soceet téati o his behalf. At the time. ofthe alleged

discussion, M. Messing was not Mz: Nowalc's agent, nor was he‘even a registered agent with-

MLS. While healleged 'sevemi:eoaversaﬁmzs with Mr, Nowak regarding other opportunities;

M. Messing was clear fhat he “did not get involved in the process,” (Id at p.671). THe Fact tHiat-

- Mr. Nowak may have had what he thought was 4 “private” discussion withan old friend about

‘his fiusteations dogsnbt ainoutitfo a fatetial breach of the Bmployment Agreexnert that would.

justify M. Nowak’s tegmination for cause.

Lastly, Mr, Messing testified that he shaged thils information with M. Sakdewios both

afier the World Cip i 2010 and again in May.of 2012. (Id. 4t 673). 1My, Sakiewicz thought

this was & material bredch, he could have ~ and in fact had a contractual. diity to —discuss the

ishue-with i, Neswak ai that fime. This situation was easily curable and the-Club failed to

provide Mr, Nowak with sither notice or the oppottunity to cure as required by ﬁ:e-ﬁmpl@yinent“

Agreement,

M., Morris testified via vidéoconference that he is a football agent in Bngland and
Monaco. He testified that Mr. Nowak contacted him three or four times “to source a football
coach, first of all, in the Emirates and also inﬁmope,”» (May 30,2014, Tr. at pp. 646-47). He
further testified that Mr, Nowak sent him his CV. He then said that he “reached out to the UK.
and America; to a filend of mhine in Du’ns;i, aolub in Dubai; and then Eu}cop,e; I randomly gave
outt or spoke of his name to certain Glubs."’ (Id. atp. 647). He testified that he "sent Mr. Nowak’s

32 '




[

Case 2:12-cv-04165-MAK Document 45-5 Filed 01/05/16 Page 37 of 67

GV several places. but no-ohe had heard-of him and fiothingrelés ever happened. (Id.-at 647-48).
Even if the Atbitrafor concluded these evenits were trae, Mr. H@W@K‘makfiﬁg‘ia;geneml?‘%zzq&ity“to
an agent, without having any contract with an-agent doesmotequate. W1ﬁ1 Mr, Nowak ® engagmg
in discussions” with agther professional soccet feant. Agan, by Mr. Mortls® ow festimony, 1o

sueh discussions ever took place, 5o thire was rio tiiatetial bredch by Mi Nowak:

‘iiféemmmtien that fhe owner of the Team, Jay Sugarman, denied that he had any
knowledge of Mr. Nowsk looking for another job in Ewcope When asked “why thatwas. hsted
s B reason’ for His termination,” Mt. Sﬁgarman rephed I think there was a beisef thathe &ad, -
. That-was not:my faajor issue.” (Claimant’s Ex, 12, Sugartan Deép at’p. .88}% Me. Suparinan

‘wetit o fo-say that his decision to-terminate Mi, Nowal:was not based-on the teasons set forthiin

the termiination letter, but rather, solely because of the MLS report:

;‘tzme you-got that
moming o “the 13% {0 fire

Q. But you inade a devision betweer
‘doeument [the MLS Report] on the: 12" end the
"Piotr; cotfect?

A, To terminate him, yes,

. Q.. And'it was not predicated on the reasons that are‘in the:
termination notice, it was predicated on {hils report; coitect?

A. My decision was based on this repart.

(C§éimant’s Ex, 12, Bugarman Dep. at pp. 93-94).
i Disparaging Remarks

In their termination letter, Respondents also assert that Mr. Nowak’s “disparaging
remarks” about the Club, its management and ownership constitute a material breach for which

M, i\féwak could be terminated for “cause.” (Respazldcnts Ex. 26 ‘;1 2). Thereis noihmg inthe

Employment Ag;:éement o suggest t_hat such a conclusion is true. Moieover, the only testimony
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regarding disparaging remarks by Mr. Nowal: was that “in confidetice” he told Mr, Messing “1

liave to get the ligll outof Philadélphia; These'guys ate stupid. They don’t know what they’re
doihg and they’re broke. They haverio money.” (May 30, 2014 Tr. atp. 666). If Mz Nowak

actually said this, while this was undoubtedly ot M. Newaks wisest omient, the suggestion

that it constitutes a matéfial breach for which he can’be terminated for cause without notice or

%}ag ‘opportunity to cuire:is rinreasonable, ifnotaiighable. Furthermore, the concerns were, af the-
time, justified. The tearh had niot —and could not — pay iterequired franchise fee. (See August
50,2014 Tr. at pp. 1187:88 and pp. 1228:29), T-was reasotiable for any employee fo be

concerned about their seourity. and theirfutire:
fi, Jupubordination

Resporidents urge the Arbitratorto.conclude that certain alleged “insubordipation™ is 2
justifiable teasan fo terminate Mr. Nowak for cquse, despite the fact that there s 16 language in
the Employment Agreement to support such a corclusion, hor do the fasts suggest that Mr.
Nowak was insubordinaté. Any-afismpt by Réspondents to ohatacterize. the allegations-of
insubordination set forth in Paragraph 5 of thie Termination Letter as.some kind of “material
breach” of the Employment Agreement should ‘be met-with failure. Paragraph 5 of the
Termination letter alleges the following reasons for termination:

multiple incidents of insub ordination with respect to the Club’s Chief
Executive Officer, including claiming at one point (in direct contradiction to
the terms of the Employient Agreement) that he does not report to the
Club’s Chief Executive Officer: '

(Respondents’ Ex. 36 § 5).
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| Again, this allegationiis-a““pile on” ssue that was not raised with Mr, Nowak when he

veceived the-emall demanding his appear for what beeame bis termination meeting, “Thus, Mr.

‘Nuswak was ot given any notice of this:allegation as required by the Buployment Agreement.

In,vaddiﬁm,}%t@sggaéegis-'seem fo misunderstand the micating of “insubordination.” To be
“insubordinaté” means “riot beyirig ordets” WEBSTER'S NEW RIVERSIDE DICTIONARY,

(1984) 1t p:365: M%::T;Nowﬁlsé;;diéifﬁésﬁcii thing,

While-the terniination lefter-mentions “multiple” incidents of insubordination, the. only
specific instance of alleged insubordination related to an incident that.occurred in Augﬁstfof ’
2011.7 The incident jiivolved M Nowak leamnisig about and taking offense to having not been
copled on.an e-mail sent by Rick Jacabs, Vice President of Operations for the Philadelphia.
Uniori to Mr. Sakiewicz, Mr. Graham (aninvestor), John Hackworth and Alecko Eskandariari
The email proposed a Philadelphia Union Acadenny & High School Coaches Open Forum.,
Unfortusiately, both MrNOWakané Mr. Sakiewicz — overredoted, as evidenced by the eemail
train assotiated With"thifs incident. '(Respenaeﬁtsf’}%m 46). M. Sugarman testified that he was
miaappy with M. Sakdewicz over this incident. ® The Areality"is,,hawayer, that Mr. Nowak wag’
116t insibordinate — meaning he-did not refuse to obey orders, He simply questioned the ¢hain of

command.

2

Equally as important, the entire incident is illustrative of thie reasonable expectations of

the parties with respect to how disputes would be handled. Mr. Nowak raised an issue first on

7 Given Respondents. failure to identify other specific incidents prior to Mr. Nowak’s
termination meeting, Mr. Nowak was given neithernotice of the offense nor an opportunity to
cure the offense as required by the Employment Agreement.

v 8 In fact, even Mr. Sugatmman acknowledged that both men: were “hot heads” with a
“temper.” (Claimants Ex, 12 atp. 55).

35




* S e

A i 0 A s

Case 2:12-cv-04165-MAK Document 45-5 Filed 01/05/16 Page 40 of 67

s owniatid thet with the agsistanee of counsel. (Respondents” Ex. 47). The Club 1-'{%3;}011&;& in

-~ yritifig, and Mr. Nowak respected that decision going forward. (Respondents’ Bx. 48), “The

fssne-wasresolved and put to bed, as evidenced by the fact that just.a few moriths later; Mr.

Nowalk’s Bmployment Agreement was extended through 2013, For-the Club to turn around

neatly a year-afier the iticident took place and six months after they renewed M, Nowak’s.

conityact; and assert this incident as: reason for termination for cause is disingenuous at best,.

There is simiply no evidence that Mr. Nowak was:ever insubordinate, The'evidencesuggests he
folt:strongly about certain things butnot that he defied his superiors:

b.  Termination Parsuaritto IT(A)(3)

Paragraph TH(A)(3) permits termination for.“Manager’s gross ﬁegl"zgﬁg‘meé orwillful

.miscondugt ih performing his duties heteunder,” These allegatiotis'pettainito a training run that.

ik plage on May’31, 2012 and to allegations sutrounding the freatment of eonoussions, both of

‘whichi became the primary: focus of the MLS Report. Even if-we acoept gs; trui the Chib’s.
factual allegations, we are left with only a partial ‘handful of isolated inidents — any of which

could have been sasily cured with notice to Mr, Nowak ~ and in fact— none of which were ever

fepeated, despite the fact that no notice was given to M. Nowak.

T order to ;_;‘rev&“g%oss;ne‘gﬁ gence,” Respondents m.;ast prove that Mr, Nowak “failed fo
use even slight care,” BARRONS LAW DICTIONARY (3 ed, 1991) atp.316. In oriler to
prove “willful misconduct,” Respondents must prove that Mr, Nowak engaged in misconduct
that was “intentional, knowing or voluntary, as disiingniéhﬁéi from accidental” (Id. at p. 530).

Respondents cannot satisfy either of these high threshholds.
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Paragraph 3 of the Termination Letter assers the-following reason for termination:

demonstrating gross neghgence, including putting the Health arid safety of
Team playets at risk by requiting injured players to participate inistrenuous
training activities, niot allowing playets to have.water during such.: ctivities
despite temperatures in excess of 80 degrees; ignoring the adviceof the
head athletic trainirg regardmv which piayers araheaithy enough o play in
games and participate in the' trainitig sessions: and créating an atniosphere
where medical issues should be hté frony medical staffand not tredted.

{Respondents® Ex. 36 13).

- OnMay 31, 2012, Mr. Nowak held a practice at the: Youth Soceer Center (*YSC"),
which is & large indoor training facility witha riinning trail-outside the facility. (May 29,201 4
Tr. at p. 329-32). Afterthe trdining run, Pani Rushing, e Head Athileic Trainer, wrote a letter
to Dr, Hummer detailing his concerns. (Resporidents® Ex. 13 at PPS0001373). He also h
contacted John Gallucei, orie of the medical coordinatorsifor the League. - (August 19, 2014 Tr. at
p. 1084). -Sejzeral.hou:s» later, he.spoke with Mr; Salkiewiez. (1d. atp. 1094): These
communications-sét the ball rolling for Mz, ‘i}{i}W&&'S"‘tﬁmﬁﬁiﬁbﬁ. T fact, based on the testimony
at the hearing, the alleged events surrouniding this training run are the-primery reason for Mr. -
Nowak’s termination for cause. As.set forth in Respondents’ termination. letter, they have three:
issues with the events of May 31, 2012: (1) the overall conditions of the run -(_iéngﬁi, location,
heat and humidity), (2) the treatiment of fnjured players, and (3) the denial of water to the players
during the run.

i. General Conditions of the Run
With respéi‘,t 10 ihe first issue — overal! conditions for training, Mr. Nowak testified that
he knew it was going to be sunny, so0 :hé, wanted 1o have-the fun in the “shadaw” of the trail
around the YSC. (May*z& 2014 Tr, atp. 202; May 29, 2014 Tr at p. 333). He further testified
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that he-had both John Hackworth and Rob Vartughian check the trail, and they reported tohim

- that'it was “doable” ° (May 29, 2014 Tr. at p:333).

Respondents could not quite agree on what time the run occurred. (TGENGG_G
testified for Respondents that the :;?an-tookfplaee’hcim’eﬁ 1100 and 1:00-isk, (May 29,2014 Tr:

MR, owever, festified that there was a 10:00 an. start. (August 19,2014 T

pi483).

atp. 959).

Whiie»}{sespaﬁﬁéﬁts;gﬁpéé,enél,é‘ssiy about the heat and humidity during the run,® the
reality is that it was.a morning tun; in the shade, on anice; low Ivamidity day — far less heat and

humidity than at the World Cup-in Brazil this'year. In fact, Glaiméi;;t. submitted Quality

_ Controlled Local Climatological Data for the Philadelphia atea that shows a tefiaperature of 78

degreesvnﬁzﬂ%humxd@aww auit.; a teriperdture of 81 degrees with 34% humidity-at
10:54 a.iin; 81 degrees with 33:% humidity at 11:54 a.m.; and 80 degrees with 33% humidity at:

12554 p.m. {Claimant’s Exhibit 13).

Asito the length of tizemn,, aceotding to Respondents, it was somewhere betwees 7 and

12 miles."! To give this some context, P tcstified that a defender would typieally

? The Philadelphia Union did not present cither Mr. Hackworth, Mr. Nowak’s successor,
or M, Vartughian to contest this fact.

0 Respondents asserted that the risk of injury and dehydration were tied to the “hot and
sunny” conditions. (NN testimony, May 29, 2014 T, at p. 462). NN, 1o '

participated in the run described the conditions as “Probably around 80-degrees, sunny, a little bit
humid” (August 19,2014 Tr. at p. 962). Yet, Bob Foose, who was hot present at therun, ~
described conditions as “exiremely humid” that day. (May 30, 2014 Tr. at p. 713); -

. H mfeﬁfiﬁed that he calculated the length of the run to'be 11 ot 12 miles. -
(May 29,2014 Tx. at p. 458-63). (NN tosiificd that the run was dong intwo segmeits,
cach about 5 miles long with a break in between. (August 19 Tr. at pp. 962-63). (N
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run 2 ¥oto 3 miles in-each half of a} game, while'an offensive. p’layerfwjoiﬁd&m;g i‘zbmfcé} miles ina
half. (May 29,2014 Tt. at p. 482). Thus, the total di stance was Joss than a full gamie for
offépsive playersatid only slightly motie than a filll j‘@.@:aj-nig;f;;r:defgnsiiegrﬁi.ayexs,/‘-Mémmze_g;.ms
s o clowledged thatno one instricted the players that they'could ﬁ@f‘iﬁ?@ii@ﬁéﬁjﬁg;- {(August.
19,2014 Tr;at p. 998). Even'Mr. Rushing acknowledged that {t was rist Wigrolesr - -
responsibility — rathér it was Mr, Nowak’s - to-establish the: amount of; runmng ti:at wcu!d e
done-durisig routing training aﬁd how iong a trmmng gession would go. (Aagusi 19, 28§4 'i‘r at’

pA113).
.  Treatment of Injured Players :

With respeot to the Second issue — treatment of injured players, prior to-the run; players.

-wemfglacedinta f3*;g:bﬁp§:,b‘z‘ised on their funning ability, Thethird ggaﬂp‘wasfqrafgém&a

players. (May 29, 2014 Tr. -a;p». 333). Mr. Nowak and M Rughing disag) ee&mﬁxzespectto
the tiaining for three individuals: “~and~ While.
there is:some dispute as to wﬁéther this was a “heated ‘argmiiehi;’ﬁas Mr; ;Ruéhiz;g’;ﬂescﬁbéciiit, |
(A&gustw, 2014 Tx, at p. 1075) or a “Lushed conversaiion,” as (N i scribed it,
(May 29, 2014 Tr. at p. 465-66), the tone is largely immaterial. M. Rushing wanted these three
players to ride the bike. (August 19, 2014 Tr..at p. 1082). He testified that he “Was upgeg%
Abecanée}aev[l\;{r; Nowak] wanted those players to run and T didn™ want them to run. I wanted to
do what I wanted to do with them,” (August 19,2014 Tr at p. 1075). "Mr. Nowak, however,

- wanted the entire team to be together. (May 28,2014 Tr, at p. 207). Accordingly, Mr. Nowak

. direet‘ed--al}‘ three players to walk the trail. (Id.).

-testif ed thatthe run was somewhere between 7-10 miles. {August 19, 2014 T, at .
1042).
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Of these three players; only B preseited any testimony, He testified that.

while he teshnically participated in the “run,™ when: 1 informed Mr. Nowak that his foot-was
injured, Mr. Nowak told hirn to walk the tiail, whlchMr NN id. (August19, 2014 Tr. at
p. 1035). Mr. SEEND fathier testificd that at the time of the May 31,2012 run, he bad an
undiagrosed fractired right: big toe: (Id atp. 1031), Despﬁe +this injary, and despite

1ayed in a.gairi¢ on June 16“’

participating in the May 31, 2012 training:session, Mt: S
{id. at p. 1039). ‘

For whatéver reasoni— partially because M. Rushing got disgusted and loft the trail
bofore the trainitig was over; (Id. atp. 1080), unitil the hiearing, Mr. Rushing wrongfully assumed

that the infured playets were foreed to:tun, and he ‘wais hot evenaware that M. Nowak had told

thie injured players they could walk.. (Id.af 1130), -‘He uridotibtedly-shiared this misinformation
with M. Sakiewioz and others. Thiseritical plece of misinformation:may be-what precipitated

the wrongful termination ¢f Me. Nowak for “cause.”

C#il. Hydeation

“With respect to the:thiird issue, hydeation, the actual events that took place arg largely
undisputed but just how confrontational the situation became and the fatent behind those events

is hotly contested.

Tt is undisputed that the players were permitted water before and after the sun. Even Mz
Nowak acknowledges that at some point before the first segment of the run concluded, he began
to deny water to. the players: (NSRS testified that he was one of the first to complete-the
first segment and that he grabbed a water bottle and “rehydrate(d].” (August 19, 2014 Tr. at p.
962). He then saw Mr, Nowak “go off the trail withj some of those carrying packs.” (Id. at 963).
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“He saw some other players-complefe their runs, and they weremnot permitted water. Ttis

undisputed-that this action by My, Nowak either prompted or was in the midst of a dialogue he:

was having with Pacl Rughivig,

At the end-of the run, M. Rushing wiote & May 31, 2012 letter to D. Hutnmer

expressing his.concern that.“theplayers” health was put at risk when they were not allowed to

have watet by the teain’s nifanager during an 8-10 mile interval run in 80-82 degree heat.”

(Respondents’ Ex. 13'aPPS0001373). Yet, Mr. Rushing aalmm&lédge& during the hearing that
there was no raasons_tc;%éIiéﬂéiﬁfﬁ&}}jiggers4wer‘ci dended hydration in the hours or days before or
after the.run, -.{Augus;i 19,2014 Tr. at p. 1124-25). Tnadditionhe acknowledged that noone: -

suffered any heat stroke, falling out, fainting, passing ouit, or nausea. He also acknowledged that

tio.one wis rgated by 4 dottor foideliydration, not were they medieally determined:to-have

damage as 4 result-of dehydration. - (. at pp, 1126, 1129). M. SN also testified that no ong

-collapsed on the course duringthe:xun;nio one was removed in an ambulance; and ho doctor was
called. (August 19,2014 Tr.at pp. 998-1000). He further testified that after the rum, the players

'*wefit-'im;;’{;ﬁa_tgiyfiq the Jocker rooni where they had access to water. (August 29, 20147Tr. P

999), Allofithis hysteria was an'overreaction to an {raining exercise that happened to take place

after an unsatisfactory performance during, the tean’s previus game, Itis simjély'unaccejjtaﬁla

to terminate Mr. Nowak for “cause” based on the mete possibility of what could have happened

bt did not,

With respect to the intent behind Mr. Nowak's denial of water, Mr. Nowak maintains that
one of his players, (MNP Had been out very {ll with the flu, He had been cleared by the

doctors to practice and decided to do so for the first time on May 31%, (May 29, 2014 Tr, at P

344). Mr. 'Nﬁwak was concerned Mr. g might spread his illness if someone else drank out
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of thie saine water bottle, Mr. Nowak testified that ‘e had previously-directéd Mr, Rushing to

iprovide each player with his own bottle with his player nuinber on it; He further testified that

M. Rushing had:refused o provide individudl, labeled bottles as directed. (May 29, 2014 Trvat
p-344-45). Asaresult, when the players weré out on the trail, because Mr. Nowak didnot want

‘players sharing watér bottles and gérrms; he withheld water for the resnainder of the a2

M. Rushing denies that Mr. Nowak requested individual bottles with éach players’ hame
onthem. {(August19,2014 Tr.atp. 1136). Mr. Hudyma, the Assistant Athletic Tiainer testified.

fhat: Tune: 1% was the first day that Mr: Nowak requested that éach player Have his own water

;ﬁéﬁi@w&h,‘his nijfiber onit.- While he denies that M. Nowak told him it was. because.of

. QR h:2ving . contagious stomach bug, hie acknowledges that it was In that same tinie frame,

\OF course; Mr. Sakiewicz, hiving largély heard the story: second hand, hestily came to the
;cé:mﬁ::}:;gion that the entire training run was:a form of punishment. (May 30,2012 Tr. atp. 893}
M, Nowak vehementlyi denied that the run was punishment, saying, “You're never going to hurt
your players. The players are most valuable asset'to yous teams:” (August 20, 2014 Tr, at pp.
1270-71). Moreover, exira practices or inicreased training is hardly unieommon in the sports
world when a team isnot ;;erformia‘g- well. While M, Sakiewioz stands ’be,;nind. his own.
investigation as the basis for Mr, Nowak's termination, his lack of understanding of'the facts was

evident when he admitted he had noidea whether the refusal of water was before, during, or after

12 My, Guitietrez recalled that another putpose of the training was to “replicate the 45+
minute half* when you seldom get to stop and drink water. {(August 20,2014 Tr. atp, 1211,
1207). : *
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that water was denied gffer the run, (Id. atp: 895)
iv.  Subsequent Training and Games

Itis undisputed that & similar iraining exercise rtﬁoi-nlaﬁe the folléwing day. M,

Rushing acknowledged that the training on the sécond dey was “‘done the way it should have -

been” and that no one was denied water, (Augast 19, 2014 Tratp. 1 134). ‘M, (SN aiso

testified that there was a run the following: dagzauﬁhgezwhiéh players were. g@xmitted o hydrate
before, during and after the run, (Angust29, 2014 Tr.atp. 1016). Ih fact Mr. Sakiewicz adinits

‘that the reg'imé of May 31 was not repeated, (May 30,2014 Tr. atp: 903-04).

The evetits of May 31, 2012 do not coristitute “gross negligence ‘or.willful misconduct”
such that Mi. Nowak could be terminated for-cause pussuant to Paragraph HICAY(3). "The facts:
présented-cannot be iﬁf;%:grﬁted to i&t}ggesif that M, Nowak “failed to use.even the slightest.care.” :
Nor is there any proof that Mr. Nowak litended to harm hi§ players. And that is not to.mention

the fact that he did not hiarm-anyone.

Even setling aside Resposdents inability to prove gross negligence orwillful misconduet,
prior to the June 13, 2012 termination meeting, no one contasted Mr, Nowak to give hirn notice
that his conduct was unacceptable and he needed to stop it. In fact, no one from MLS orthe
Club even questioned Mr, Nowak directly ;aifa'eiut' that practice-and/or provided him an opportunity
to be heard prior to deciding to terminate him., These were contractual prerequisites for
terminating Mr. Nowak for “cause” under this provision. And again, even without being
provided the notice to which Mr. Nowal was entitled, the alléged offending conduct was never
repeated.
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v,  Concussion

Regponderits acouse M, Nowak of ‘f‘crgatih:g; an‘atiospheré where medical issues should
be hid from miedioal fgtaﬁ‘ and riot treated.” i{i?ﬁe:sﬁpiénéents “Ex: 369 3). Weanticipate this
language refersto-the evidence relating to coneussions. ‘Among other things, the MLS Report
accuses Mr. Nowak of calling players ‘pussies” for saying they have a concussion, denying ‘
coneussions ‘exist, and:aceusiig players of faking concussions, Of course, neither ,thenames or
even quantity of players who'made theso accusations werb. ever provided 'sc fio-¢foss- |
exantination was -a@gi}ébie— to.Mr. Nowak. Eventhe MLS Report eautioried that itiany of the
things the players »If:go.ried;‘éﬁéui--wm Jusi thing&vt%zﬁsg had: .hea;d?- but had ot seen directly.

(Respondénts® Bx. 27),

o contrast to the aceusations levied iny the MLS Report, Mr; Nowalk testified thaths
specifically recdlled two parfieulir coricussion issues in 2012 — one related to (YN
SR . (ho other to RN 1o fact, Mr, Nowak wag s0. concerned by the issue
that hie ordered protective helmets: |

So after those two incidents T went 16 My, Rushmg and ask him o get

protective helmets. M1 Rushing not disregard but basically didn’t care
about that. .

" SoTwent fo our team eqaipment manager Mr, Tim Cook and Dan Nolan,
and order on line five protective helmets for anybody who will have any
kind of problems with the concussions,

-were trained in the protective belmets,
which: it does not look good but is-very effective.

(May 28, 2014 Tr: at p.. 224.), Mr. Nowak further testified that television commentators
criticized him, calling him “insane” for ordering helmets.. (Id. at p. 225). Shortly after his

. termination, Mr, Nowak was watching a4 game and saw an interview with Assistant
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Coach/Technical Director Rob Vartughian, who was asked why one of the

fonger wearing a helmet, Mr. Vartughisn explairied that it is a “comfott issue.” (1d:)

I thie MLS Report, M, Rushing s atteibuted with saying that M, Nowak didnot
understand the coézeaa‘sion'pmibcdl; (Respondents’ Ex. 37 at p. 3). Mr. Nowak acknowledged
as 'z%iuéﬁl “So,as T safd, Tmight not understand protocol, which I know what Is thepistodol, but’
it was not that I diseheyed any kind of regulations and rules of Major Tieague Sotcer concerning
Gonissions” (May 28, 2014 Tr. at p, 225-26), In theend, Me. Rushing testified that fie knew of
sio ingident when Mr, Nowak insisted that somebody-play who had been diagnosed with e

concussion. (August 19,2014 Tr. at p. 1144). Respondents also présented the Hieatday testimony

of Bob Foose regarding statentionts to him front playershé would fieither quanitify nor identify.

(May 30; 2014 T, at p. 759-60).

This evidenice is insufficiet to establish gross negligence or willful misconduet under
Paragraph I(A)(3). Again, even if the Arbitrator-wete to find this high standard-fsimet,,
Respondents breached the contract by failing to provide M. Nowak with fidtioe and an

opportunity to cure prior to terminating him for cause.

¢. Termination Pursuant to III(A)(’?}
Paragraph III(A)(7) permits termination for “Managet’s Tfailiite to comply in all material
respects with Team Rules (consistently applied to the coaching staff or the Team) or League
Rules.” Once again, Respondents failed to satisfy the prerequisites of providing notice and an

opportunity to cure as per the Employment Agreement,
Paragraph 1 of the Termination Letter alleges termination for material breaches of
Leéague rules as follows:
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| breaches. of League Rules (imludmg thig Ledgne’s
ing-Agreément); including. physmai confrontations with
: 1als~ &urmg a Team g&me resahang ina ;f‘ ine and mtﬁt1~game

gariﬁusfmatﬁiﬁf ‘

hiazing ; actw es; ami engagmg in behavzer that put t}w healtia and safety of
Team. piayers atrisk,

(Respondents’ Ex, 36 § 1){emphasis-added).
i Fines and Suspensionis

With respect to physical confrontation with players-and officials during a game, fine arid
multi-game suspension, there is no éiépufe that certain fines id sfﬁs;séusiéﬁs-weréieﬁéd against
Mr. Nowak and/or the Philadelphia Union, Again, thisis a “pileon” issue that &as- added to the
termination letter butriot contained in'the jiotice fequiring Mr. Nowak o come to the office on

June 13,2012. Tt is hardly unique that coaches and pléyers ste ejected From pames and firied for

ei'ti-ier-%ig'-gfe_ssivebﬁh&?im;dmigg: the heat of the agm‘e..e‘féeéﬁ?i*éﬁtaﬁéﬁs with Ab’ﬁfictazs; Ttis folly
‘to suggestthat codclies ot players are éver fired overthis. Coaches and teanis get fined all the
time i pr'csféssionai:spaﬁsi ~Coachegalso get suspended from games. To suggest that this
everyday conduct rises:to the level of a-minterial "b'r"{sat{:h of Leaghe mles sufficient to warrant:
termination is unreasonable-and itapeactical, Tn.addition, 1o one ever sat down M. Nowak and
told him that if he got one.more fine:or one more suspension, he would be terminated, Again,
thete is a lack of notice and Tack of oppﬁﬁanity 10 cure as required by the Employment

Agreement that cannot b vverlooked,
ii.  Interference with MLS Players Union

" There was a single zillega’tibxx regafding alleged interference by Mr. Nowak with the
Player’s Union at thie end of training caifp in 2012. The issye-centered around a player and/or
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QEEENNY i-iscd the issue-of whether the Team had cormplied with the ‘SN olicy.
Diego Guitierrez tesfified that he leamed from Dave Debusschere that S
gomgi@ed?i@ib@i_frfonftggﬁic;e*v_;;ji;;é};t-l (August 20, 2014 Tr. at p. 1221). Mr, Guitierrez
participated:in & meeting with M. Nowak, SERSSENEN, 2nd SRR/ hore Mr. Nowak

told the thres of ther to Wl

RN (id. ¢t 1224). M. Guitierrez also testified that he was invited o a

tean meeting during which Mt. Nowak addresséd thie issue of time off as follows:

ieally told ttie players, “Look, if there are. -

U8 arfl‘cfi't out, Wi@’vﬁ' work with you.” That
Hly it ffitiliias{éaliyWas‘a’mﬁeﬁng wherehe just said, “look,
an open door here, come and see us if you have concerns.”

{(August 20,2014 Tr, atp: 1208). M. Giifierrez was emphatic.that Mr. Nowak did not tell the
players they should not contacktbePlayers Union, and he furthet insisted that Mr, Nowak did

nothing to interfere with the players contacting the Players Union, (Id.).

‘Byeir the witnesses piesented by Resporidents were weak on this issue. —
testified that he had:a mestitig with M. Nowek, Diego Gutierrez and -dm‘mg which -
Mz, Nowak “bagically just said: Look, if you have anissue, you should raise it with us before,
You know, we can-handle everything intetnally, You know; he d’idi}’t invoive. the Playets
Union,” (May 29,2014 Tr. at p. 434). M. R i ther testified that Mr. Nowak later called

him gnd asked him who went 10 the Players Union about the ‘WS ssue.” (Id. at435)."> He

1 G :lso tostified thet Mr. Nowak called him and inquired who had raised the
“QEEY issue and he responded: “And I basically just said that 1 didn’t, I didw’t know who did,
and he just reiterated the point of we can work together, you don’t need to use your Players

Union for any issues that atise.” (August 19,2014 Tt atp. 95 1
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later ie-chatacterizéd the first mecting; saying that Mr: Nawak said “we needed to keep

. 6*‘Jegyfhin‘g_;iﬁ house and we don’t need to be going anywhere wi&-a:gg&ng glse-other than going

straight to Coach Nowak or Diego and everything shotld beresolved within those two people.

We.could resolve it by going to them.” (Id.at437),

SRR o tcstified on the interference issue and said only: “L recall them calling

ameeting inthe-players looker room it which I believe both Piotr and Diego-addresséd the:group.

abouit contaotitig the: Players Union.and that it would be better if we didn’t go to the Players

- Utiion and went to ther instead if we had a grievance.” (May 29, 2014 Tr. at.p. 477). Later, on

ctoss-exanination, Mr. (R confirmed there wasmo interference:

Q.. Youdeseribedthis meeung where there was’d dlscussw -#bouk
contageting the Players: ‘Union and somebody said it waulci be better, ifyou
Havea preblem, 0 cometo us.
Q: Isthat what you weretold, the extent of what you were told?
A, Yes,
(May 29,2014 T¢. at:p. 485).

ORI icstificd that My, Nowak “asked if we had any issugs, that we come forth to
him and try and work out some sort of an agreement or handle the situation without going to the -
Players Union.” (August 19, 2014 Tr. atp. 949). He also characterized Mr. Nowak’s request-as
saying, “if there’s anything that comes up that you guys have an issue with, please come to us
and we’ll work it out, you don’t need to go and bring up any issues with yeur( Players Union,”

(1d. at 950).
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R (<t ficd similarly that Mr. Nowak said “[t]hat when we had.
complaints; that we didn’t néed to immediately go to the Plagets Uniori and to:seck out himself
and-one of the other people on thie staff and to bring the-complaints to them first before we had

_gone to the Union, Players Union” (Id. at p. 1038)(empliasis added): Mr. (NN testivony-
was perhaps the clearest in illusteating that M. Nowak wgéggimpiy;pi:émgﬁng an open door “
policy where efforts to resolve issuies could ,f‘i;%gst be indde between coschey/staff and players

before elevating them to 'theéi.’layiers Union.

Mr, Sakiewicz testified that in May of 2012, several days aﬁei‘_waﬁ traded |
on CENEENENY VIr, Sakiewicz received a-call from Bob Foose telling hitn that the Players
Union has filed o grievance with the League aliegmgﬁmMr Nowak told the players not {0
comrnunicate with ‘ihe-,.Uaioﬁjandzﬂiatf'afx:iﬁ‘vés‘tfgaﬁéz_mvb{ﬂﬁ be conducted. (May 29, 2014 Tt
at pp. 562-65). While the Union urges the-Arbitrator to conclude that Mr. (N ade to
RN - rotaliatory action for M. (NN boying raised the N
issue; Mr Guitierrez emphatically denied that had anything to do-with the téade. Rather,‘ Mr.
Gutierrez stated that M. (NI had lost Bis step, he was.not good enough-anymore.” He went
o to say that Mr, M8had 4 good year in M, but after the off season “éame back a different
player where he was a lot slower.” (August AZO, 2014-2£ 1225), M ‘ﬁow_ak echoed these
reasons for My, SR rade, saying, “I'ni going to say he didn’t play bad, he got bad season,
and 1 received a text message from Mr, Sakiewicz, afier one of the games, that he cost us the

game and we have to do-something about it.” (May 28, 2014 Tr. at p. 234).

Respondents overplayed the significance of the alleged interference. Even their own
witness, Todd Durbin, testified that while MLS was going to investigate the interference
allegations, the interference allegations did pot raise “major alarm bells.” He testified that it was
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not until the dllegations relited to the May'31, 2012 ttaining “that the smfffeﬁﬁy:%aﬁedé1@:‘6}?’&?{1@

up and we then sott.of froved from an fssue that sas important but wouldn’t necessarily have.
rose to the leviel-bf inajor alatin bells and sexiousness to. we now may be potentially looking at.
something that's very different thap just simply a situgtion where a coach lag'told his playersnot
to contact the Players Union” (May 30,2014 Tr: at p. 780-81). The alleged interference issue.
wasnot sigtificant shough to.warrant tertiination for cause: Moreovet, there 'wasno gvidence”
presented that it gy@r:ﬁgpgené&ﬁga&. 'f‘nz-:?écr;, Mr. Sakiewicz admitted this. (May 30,2014 Tr.
atp. 903-04), ‘Ultimately, the suggestion that the players.attempt to resolve mafers within the
organization first is hardly “interfering!” with:the relationship between the playess and their

bargaining agent,
g oy

i Hasing

Withi respeet fo ‘ali?{eg'eéhéziﬂ_g% activities, Respondents have failed to identify any Led gae
Ruleon this issus. Mr. Nowak did not deny thdt rookie hazing took plage duritig his fenie as
manager of the Philadelphia Usion, in¢luding joking, singing, dancing and paddling:of rookie:
p}aﬁers. (May 28,2014 Tr.at p. 187-1 90, 226-229). Mr. Nowak also testified that prior to
éﬁgagi‘né in this activity, he received pre-approval from former Philadelphia Union Pregident,
Tom Veit and from Nick Sakiewicz. (August 20, _é.@lti Te, at p. 1241), Hef did not deény sticking
‘his hand in an iee bucket in between paddling. (May 28,2014 Tt. at p. 382), Iri fagt, he
indicatéd that a videotape was taken each year by his assistant coaches, Rob Vartughian and John:

Hacimmth,_' 1n:201 0, 2011 and 2012. He further testified that he was present when those

. videotapes were shown to Mr, Sakiewicz and others (May 28,2014 Tr. at p 222-27) and that Mr.

Sakiewicz loved it and never instructed hintafter to stop the rituals:
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Q. Okay. And your testimony is that Nick Sakiewicz.did not
instruct you after 2010 not to coriduct the slapping,

A Absoiutely hot, Ha saw it wﬁh Rlchie G; ah

Marbie, Hxs wxfe was there with hls son:Nichok: 1. Agl
said thege-was an mvestor, new investof, Rich G'r’éﬁ‘am m:the Io‘bby. Jeim
Hagkworth or Rob Vattughian-showed the videotape or Wwhatever’ the:
recording, That was esrery year he was with us and he saw it swhat.was
lappening. . ,

. (May 29,2014 Tr. at pp. 383-84; see also August 20, 2014 Tr.afp. 1241), Fermer Philadelphia.

Wnion Sporting Director, Diego Gutietrez, confirmed these facts; sfating that He SaWNmk

" Sukiewicz watch the video ona teleplione and langhed. (Augist 20,2014 Tr: atp. 1202, 1215-

16). ‘He further confitmed that Mr, Sakiewiez did not criticize anyone-about the hazing. (Id. at

1202).

Mr. Sakiewicz testified that in the 201 1 ‘pre-season he travelled to Gresoe with the Teani

anidithat he was shown a video of the hazing, When:asked about his reaction, he testified that

while he was internally upset, because there were 2 lot of people around, he just “absorbed it
(May 29,2014 Ty, ‘;é.t-p,‘ 526-27). He further testified that he “tgld Plotx that this wasn’t
sométhing that we should do as a team; that I dide’t warit it to be donie again; that it's not
exemplary of the team that aspites to be at one time Ametlca’s mostadmired socderbraid. And

we.agreed to disagres.” (Id. at p. 527).

It is difficult to comprehend how Mr, Sakiewicz, who clearly was Mr. Nowalk’s boss,
allegédly knéw that Mr. Nowak disagreed with him; yet fook no further action to ensure that the
condaz;t- was not repeated in 2012, Bx;en Mr. Debusschete testified that to his -kﬁoWieége, no
written commmunication directing M; Nowdk to cease this activity going forward, nor
disciplining him for doing so. (May 28, 2014 Tr. at:pp. 102-03). 1f Mr, Sakiewioz really wanted
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the hazing — or seme portion of it stopped — he cotild have and should have provided M. Nowak
with written direction and/or discipline on this issve, Trseems likely that the-sensitivity tothe
hazing issue only canie itits play when MLS; the Players Union or the Tear realized that #m

RN |2 beon subjected to the hazing.

Hazing has been, from 'celiégezéﬁgtsmﬁies fo spotts teams 4t any level, a Honding ritual
engaged in with new members and rookies; ‘While égméffdﬁﬁs o hazing can be dangerous {e.g.
excessive drinking) the ritual followed by the Philadelphia Union was hardly in that category.
To {etninate Mr. Nowalk:for cause wii;es:n:,r-xo-:éne:‘-i.nemanageﬁxent_made any real effort to enforce

this non-existent “League rule” is a breach of the Employment Agreeitient,
fv.  Jeopaidizing Healtlanid Safety of Players

With respect to the.allegationthat Mr. Nowak engaged “in behavior that put the Health
arid safety of Team players at risk,” Mr. Debusschere was asked what this language referred fo.
and responded as follows:

A, Iknow specifically the lion’s share of it definitely was in the report. [
don’t recall if there was-anything outside:of thaf. But certainly it was the
rin iS5ues; ‘ :

Q. The run issues?

A. The runs, concussions, and all that stuff.

(May 28, 2014 Tr. at pp..79-80).

The substance of these issues has already been diseussed in detail. In addition, no
League rules have been identified to warrant re-visiting this {ssueé i conniection with section

TIAXT).
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Bvenif the-Arbitrator found that all of this was trie, wider the Employment Agreement;

the Club WaSobhgatedtonoﬁf‘yMr Nowak of any and all issves, allow him an opportunity to

tespoid to those issues, anid:allow him an‘opportunity to cure any defect. Nene of these

obligations were met, *
Paragraph 6 of thie Termination Lotter alleges termination for material breaches of Team

rulesas follows:

viitious: materzai breaches of Team Rules, including creating a hostile work
id Gilltiive of fear for Team players arid other front office
ly berating and. physmaliy intimidating fellow employees.

(Respondénts® Bx. 36 16) (emphasis added).

Wik Sakiewioz festified that irr late 2011 he heard that Rick Jacobs, Vice President of
Qpefatwas, had been “assaulted” by Mr. Nowak eatlier that year. (May 29, 2014 Tr. atp. 531

“While:Mr. Sakiewloz claims tohave b‘e’éﬁ alerted about this in 2011- “quite g--t,irg-le after .tht:_

ifieideitt?- i niver taised thie'issue with Mr. Nowal, nor did he even bother to have Mr. Jacobs

docunent the incident. While:Mr, Sakiewicz insisted that Mr. Jacobs wiote a memo regarding.

 the fneident in 2011, the evidence demonistrated that he did not draft a memo until May 29, 2012,

nearly a yeas after thg;. ineident which ':aileg‘eéiy"-took place on May 16, ZOI {. (Sec Respondents’
Exhibit 49). Because Respondents did not present Mx, Jacobs to authenticate the document Of
withstand cross-examination on the document and underlying contents, the memo and the

testimony surrounding this incident should be excluded as inadmissible hearsay.

The suggestion that Mr. Nowak created a “culture of feat” is not supportable. But
for the run issue, there 18 no eviderice that Mr. Nowak was an abusive coach or even one that was
disliked by his players. Cie‘a,t},ys M., Sakiewicz and Mr. Nowek did not get along. Once can.
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easily argue that Mr. Sakiewiez was as ruch at fault a5 Mr: Nowak it fueling this fire. The
olaim ‘thét-a “cuilture of fear” existed is nothing more than that; an-unsubstantiated claim. The
evidence showed thiat Mr. Nowak was a popular coach among the fans and that there was real
concern-ahout fan reaction to his firing. (Respondents’ Ex. 26), Mr. Guitietrez, who has known
and worked with Mr. Nowak fot years testified that no one evei-told hin'that they were aftaid of
M, Nowaky
Q. Did any player, to your knowledge, ever complaint. fo you thatthey
were afraid of Plotr and/or concerned about Piotr’s treatriieiit-of them?
A No. Listen, "Il say this: I've known guys that have played for
Piotr i D.C. and that have played for Piotr with the National Team, and I
mean, they*ve always spoken really well. Look; the:guy wins; t? Sohe
 was successfitl with the National Team, he was successful with DG
Usitted;. And for a shiort period of time we were successful with

Nobody that I know of has.ever comp?ﬁmedwexpressezfjéarmplc{ymgfb;
Pivtr. .

(August20, 2014 Tk, af p. 1206)(emphasis added).

Until the morning Wi:eﬁ. ivfr, Nowak was provided with a termiriation Jetter, he was not
provided with riotice that he had allegedly violated any.‘ Team Rules or League Rules puisuant to
this provision of the agreement, nor was he provided with anopportunity to tespond fo the
allegations or t6 cure the alleged conduct — which he eleatly could have done. Any contention.
that 'the'se:. ‘a‘&icgé&lioﬁs were not eutable or “could teasonably be expected to result in material
harid to the Club” is belied Sy the evidence.

4, Respondents Cannot Lawfully Terminate Mr, Nowsk For *Cause” Pursuant -
 To Paragraph III(A)(5) '

In a desperate attempt to rectify their failure to abide by the Employment Agreement and .

periiit Mr, Nowak an oppostunity to cure any issues prior to his termination for cause,
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‘Respondents attempt fo justify Mr. Newak’s termiriation based on ?éf&g{&iﬁhlﬁ(&)ﬁ)?of the
Employment A,greeme;hg) While its:applicability is‘a stietch; Parageaph II(A)(S) is the only
clause of the Employsiient Agreement apparently invoked by Respondents that permits
termination for cause withent first providing Mr. Nowak wz:}z anopportunity to cure. ' Motg
s_i;b:eqiﬁcally, Paragraph [II(A)(5) -pemiifz’s_ termination if “Managers cominission of any action or
inx;o i#ement inany occurrence that . . reflectsin amaterially adverse mannet on the inte grity,

reputation or goodwill of Club. or the Tearn.” {R&sﬁﬁnﬁeﬁt‘;@ Bx. 1, § TI(A)(S)) (emphasis-added).

‘While “materially adverse” is not & defined term, in order for:aft issue to be “material” it
misst be important or necessary as related fo:a.given matter: BARRON’S LAW DICTIONARY
(3d ed. 1991) at p. 294. Respendents did siot preseiit sufficient evidence fo prove material

adversity to-the infegfity, reputation or goodwill ofthe Club.

Apparenily relying on this-clause, Patagraph 4 of the Termination Lettor alleges
termination for the following reasons:.
committing actions that have feflected it a muteriglly adverse tanner on
‘the integrity, reputation and goodwill of Club arid the Team (in the eyes of
the League, U.S, Soceet, cufrent and potential Team players, sponsors and
fans), including the unusually harsh treatment of players described above,
actions during Team games that have resulted in fines and syspension, the
multiple breaches of Teague Rulés and a discussion (by you and your agent
o your behalf) with the head of U8, Soccer that was in very poor taste and
left a vety bad impression with U.S. Soccer..

(Respondents’ Bx, 36 4) (emphasis added).

Respondents cannot justify Mt. Nowak’s termination for cause based on Paragraph
Iii(A)(S)'because they have not introduced sufficient evidence to prove that Mr. Nowak’s

conduct reflected in amaterially-adverse manner on the integrity, reputation or goodwill of the
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Club.or the Team. Tn fact, Respondents have barely introduced evidence that reflects in.any

‘adverse manner at all, let alone a material ofie,

Respondents begin by atterptinig to broaden the ;iiaﬁse in the. Employment:Agreement to
be linked to“the syss of the League, U.S. Seccer, cursént and potential Teantplayers, sponsors
and fans The Broployment Agreement simply does not say this and it cannot bedmplied into.

the Employment Agreement. Respondents then refer to the “unusually hatsh™ treatment of

‘players, which i§ a'clear ovétstatement of the everifs that took place o May 31y 201207

otherwise — and which has tiothing fo-do with damage to the Club’s teputition because it was riot

public.

Respondents then complain about fines and suspensions which are-au obvious partof afty
professional spoit, inicluding soccer. If being issued a fine or suspension can rgsultina
saterially adverse veflection on the intégeity; reputation, or goodwill of a teain, theri most, ifnot
every, professional ‘Spprts;i:ean’:}i%s..s&fféﬁ&d from this at one time or another. Similatly, with
raspect to breaches of League rales, the suggestion that breacﬁ_i;{gLeangg{as_; Ot OXE OF HIOre
ogéasions reflects in a materially adverse manner on the integrity, reputation, or goodwill ofa

teait is ludicrous. Rules and their breaches are a part of professional sperts.

Lastly, .Respondex;fs refer to a conversation in “poor taste” that left-a “bad impression”
with U,S. Soccer. Mr. D@basschcre.‘te;sﬁifiedthat t‘his'sa;a,s‘ a reference to.the-alleged conversation
between Mr. Nowak and Mr. Messing during which Mr. Ngwak allegedly ifiquired about the
head coachiing position of the U.S. Men's Nati§na§ Team. (May 28, 2014 Tr. atp. 98). Again,

the suggestion that this inquiry created a materially adverse reflection on the Club is withont

merit,
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‘Respondénts provided no evidence regarding impact on the reputation of the Club, other
than Diave Debusscheres” speculation that it coudd be problenatic if the MLS Report becanis

. publicand his hearsay festimony:of what othets ;ai’ié,g'edly sald:

Q. Okay. So I wantto know what:got'out 16: thepublic that Plotr did that
affected the brand,

A, We didi’'t want it out in the public. Itwas that that report-was:se bad
that if it gotout in the public, it conld have'a'significatit negative: impact on
S

Q. Butmy. questwn {5 riet. what would happen ifit g»at out. You, saidih}
they have:reflected in an adverse mammer on the integrity, repuiationiand.
goodwill, T want to know who told that the repuiaﬁen of the Union was

damaged because of semst}nng Pioti: Nowak: ‘Hd, .

feedback mcilvxénals were: ha,vmg wrti; her
senhment I mean 11: wasr;‘i Just those; 1tems

you knew, fzom U. S Scsccer, Mr Sakze 1 e
saying what’s this.guy doing, why-ishe iookmg foranethes: ‘job, this'i§-what
hie’s saying, its” not reflecting very good-on: you. -

There's comments from the- agemi: M, Shep Messmg, Back to: M.
Sakiewicz, this is what’s being said. out there-about you s, that you have.
no'idea what you're domg, yoit know, you: have 16 idea how to:run, you.

dor’t have any money, all that kind ofistuff,

(May 28, 2014 Tr. at p. 92-95)(emphasis added),

Accordingly, Respondents failed to present safﬁeiem:—esiidencé at hearing to demonstrate
that M;r;)NOwak’é conduct reflects in a materially adverse manner on the fiaxtégrigy, reputation or.
poodwill of the Philadelphia Union: Even if the -Arbiirator disa,érees, the Club still breached the
Employme;lt Agreen";cnt when it failed to act in good faith and to givé Manager an Ovi‘;ﬁl?om:ﬁty

to respond to the allegations against him. (Respondents’ Ex. 1 O
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Much of the'evidence exposes a testosteronesfieled event. The Players Union, in its

advogacy role fuels the fire by {:ijpiéiﬁiﬁg;tﬁfﬂiefkea@é. ‘The League, to appease the.

protestation of thie Players Uttion, conclided that M. Nowak should be thrown to the wolves,

giving M. Sakiewioz putative cover to.assert his auithority over a coach with whom he clashes.
Mr. Nowak, who by all accounts was g brilliatit Gozch with an uiblemistied record going into his
job with the Philadelphia Uniot hias had the rug pulled-out from urider him by what amounted to
a'povier play. Fire it if}ygu will, but hosor his .e'gﬁﬁ%&ctixzfﬁan you dothat. Professional
atfiletes and theircoaches fall out of favor withs thelr smployers-all the time. Even novice:sports

enthusiastsrecognize that the separation of a player or coach from. a team is often dictated or

impeded by an existing contesct. Buy him out if tised be, buit youcanndt ignore eithet the terins

or the spirit of a cotitract,

B. . Mr, Nowak is Owed Damages By Respondents
Agaresilt of breaching their continct with:Mr, Nowak, Respondents owe Mr: Nowak the
remainder of his Base Salury under the Employment Agreementand Amended Employment

Agreement, his unpaid bonuses, and consequential damages.

Where one party to a contract breaches that conifract; the othe party may recover for
those injuries that have been proved with teasonable certainty. Any compensation awarded for

injury is termed "damagés." Generally, the measure-of damages is the sum that will compensate

the Claimant for the Joss-sustained. Pennsylvania Suggested Standard Civil Jury Instructions

19.260.
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With respect 1o Bése Salaty, the Erfiployment Agréement provides for 4 Base Salary of
$373,050 For calendar yedr 2012, (Respondeiit’s Bx. 1 at IV(A)(4)). Accordingly, M, Nowak is
ovied $1,022.05 per day for cach of the 202 remaining days from June 13, 2012 through |
iﬁécémber- 31,2012 which amotnts fo. $206,454.10. The December 20, 2011 Arended
Empi%{ment:k&gregmen*ﬁ;;?mviﬁésithaﬁ M. Nowak’s Base Salary shall be as follows: for the |
2013 calendarjear: ‘$385,000; for the 2014 calendar year: $396,550; and for the 2015 calendat
year: $498,446 J(Res;}:‘b‘iiéémsf Exﬁ} ’:Thﬁg,'féf 2013,72014, and 2015, Mr. Nowakis owed his
full Base Salary which totals $1,189,996.. In total, Mr. Nowal is owed $1,356,450.01 in Base

 Salaty..

Wﬁﬁ:‘-—rgs;zectsto%91115'5133;1iﬁ@ﬁ@pieymegfﬁgmemﬁt provides that Mr. Nowak is éi?ﬁﬁ?éfié-
a bonus oF $15,000°4f “Managet is selectéd sshead Coach for the League’s All-Star Gaine”
(Respondents® Bx. 1, Schedule A, lastling). On-April 11, 2012, the Philadelphia Union
anhouriced that M, Nowak hiad been selected as the Head Coach for the League’s All-Star
Game, and we ask the Arbitrafor to take judicial notice of this fact. (See Philadelphia Union
Press Release attached hereto-as Bxhibit A). The Bonus schiedule did not require Mr. Nowak to.
coach that game, but rather to sitmply be seleoted. The Teami’s decision to terminate him so that
he was 1ot périnitted to actually coach the game is immaterial to My, Nowak’s entitleraent to the

bonus money.

3. Compensatory Damages Owed to Mr. Nowak
Tn addition to the loss of Base Salary and Bonus, Mr. Nowal has sustained additional
consequentidl damages as a result of the breach of the Employment Agreement. As set forth
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‘above, in connéction with Mr, Nowak's purchase of 2 home iy the Philadelphia-ares, he agreed

16 the previously discussed Loan and Advance. Butforhis {ermination for cause, Mr. Nowak.

would either still be working for the Union and paying off those debts as schieduled, or if he had.

‘been terminated dnd paid out his cohtract as he should have been; he would nothave acerued and

‘be continuing to accrue interest on the-Loan and the Advance. Rather; he simply-could have

immediately paid those obligations. Given Respondents” material breach of the Employmerit

Agreem@nﬁan&iiac’k of good faith, Mr. Nowak should not be obligated to pay the interest

-associated with the Loan and Advance.

Tn addition, whether there has beén an overt effort fo blackball Me, Nowak or not, Mr,

‘Nowak has been unabls to-a secure a position in Major League Soccer even ag an-assistant coach;

technical director or sporting director.

4, Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Owed t6 Mr. NoWak
“The partieswill submit fee petitions and any associated arguinents once the Award is.

made. M. Nowak expressly reserves the right to assett such-éﬁtﬁages ‘based.on the Employment

~ Agreeiment, as wall as the Petnsylyania Wage Payment and Collection Law,

€. The Remaining Counter Claims
Respondents filed counterclains associated with the Loan and Advarice made to M, Nowak
and seeking amounts allegedly due to them with interest and/or attormeys’ fees.
1. The Loan
Paragraph XXI of the Amended Em ployment Agrecment (Lioan) provides as follows:
(&) Club hereby agrees to provide to Manager an unsécured recourse loan

in the aggregate principal amouit of $60,000 (the *Toan™), which Loan
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shall accrue interest at-a-fixed rate 0f'5.00% per-annum and be
immediately due and payable upon the catlier of (iy Decerber 31, 2015.
and (i1) the date that Manager is no longer employed by ¢ Clubforany
reason (i.e. termination of this Agreement pursuant aragraph 110 (in
either case, the “Maturity Date”) . (%).all amouits théh cutstanding
wnder the Toan including all:accrued by tnpaid interest thereo:z) shall be:
paid in fill by Manager to Chub upon'the Maturity Date, .

(B)If Manager doés.not repay all amounts then-outstanding under the Loan
(ineludingall acerued but unpaid intgrest).on orbefore the Matarity
_ Date. .., then (i) interest shail acorue on such- unpaxé amount at a rate:
of 7. 00% per annun, .

(Respondents’ Ex. 59 XX1).

As set forth above, in Qqnneegii)n,, Wifh'Mﬁ,ﬁ@}i&ﬁkﬁ?ﬁ&ed"ig}f)ii?(}ﬁa_se :aiiomeziﬁ:ﬁxa
“Philadelphia aréa, the Club loaned him $60:000 whichiwas to b paid back to the Club through
pa;yion deductioh. Th}iﬁs,— the Loan i‘é(_;}iifé&thaif-u;a'émiMr‘.;Niawak’é termination from ;theéiub,
thio balance of the loan became fmmediately due and payable and that any delay in-e-payment
under those eitcumstances wouldresulé inferest-acorufng at # set rate, Besause Mr Nowak was
wnfawfully not paid?ﬂ;’e; rémainder-of his ¢contract upon 'iémif;}a&ﬁ;}n,he madé no payments after-
his temﬁnatién, The patties have stipulated that the peincipal due on the Loan is $53,717 and
that interest would be due on-the balance at 7%. (See Respondents’ Ex 70).. That said, should
the Arbitrator find that Mr. Nowak’s-for “cause” termination was a breach of the Employment
Agreement and/or made in bad faith,-any interest that has been accrued since the dateof
termination is a consequential damage of the breach; and thus, shouldnot be charged to Mr.

Nowak.

2. The Advance
As set forth above, in.connection with Me. Nowalk’stieed to purchase a home in the

Philadelphia area, the Club also-advanced to Pino Sports, payments that were to be made under
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the Pino.Sports Agreerhent for 2011-:and 2012, This Adyance. was made pursuant to aMarch'15,
2011 Advange and Pledge Agreement. (Respondents® Bx. 4). The Club maintains that they are
owed reimbursemerit for the 2012 payrients that Had not yet been earned pirior to Mr. NﬁWi‘iés .
termination, ?uxsgaﬁt {o thy Advance g;}él;}?lsége Cangent, the ';;ay'm"e‘nfsi iwere due within30
days of Mr. Nowal¢s terfitination. Because Mr. Nowak was unlawfully not paid the remathder
o'.fhis.»cgntract--_z;peg.-tem'imii@m;he miadg no payments afier his termination: The parties have
stipulated that the principal dug on'the Advance is $46,680.33 and that inferest wonld be-due on

the balance at 8%. (See Respondents” Bx, 70).

Thiat said, should the Atbitrator find that Mz, Nowalds for “cause” totmination was &
breach of the Ettiployment Agteement and/or made in bad faith, any interest thathas been
acerued sinoe the date of termination is a consequential damage of the breach; and thus, should

not'be charged to M, Nowak.
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V. -CONCLUSION

For all the foregoing reasons, Clalmant,?zotr Nowak, tespectfully requests the Atbitrator.

to sustain his elaims for-bréach ofcontractandawatdhimthefoliowng

1). $1,396,450.01 in lost Base Salary, plus ititerest

2,)$15,000 plus interest for tils Bonus ?@r.ha&ziz‘;gbeeﬁ:seéeﬁted as the Head Coach:for the

League’s All-Star Game,

“Withzespeet to the counterclains, Mr; Nowak réspeptiully requests .ﬁiai;‘fga)i:;ffs‘e.t be
_made 1o his Award in the ainount of § 10&59?33;%%&1 is déitved froinra $53,717 balanee due.
- ot the Loan and4 $46,680.33 Balatice dus-on fhe-Advance. Mr. Nowakfm“therrequesfsﬁtat
‘ecause he was wrongfully terminated for“cause;” he shallnotbe tebiijgateéﬁ-ﬁé:,:@ﬁy:iﬁ;i{bgi&i;@in‘g

interest-due.on gither the Loan or Advance,

Mr. Nowal requests ittty (30) days Tiom thie issuarics oF the Award to.file his fée

petition,

M, Nowak also requests the opportunity to re-visit the scope of the confidentiality

agreement entered in this matter after the Award is issued.

Respectfully Submitted -

HAINES & ASSOCIATES

Date: December 5, 2014 AAOLU/( 3. M

Clifford B, Haines (
‘Hollie B. Knox |
1835 Market Strest, Suite 2420
. Philadelphia; PA 19103
- (215) 246-2200
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